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ABSTRACT. 

Th~ project reports on the extent of voluntary 

d~sclosure by listed companies of Nairobi Stock Exchange. The 

study analyses voluntary disclosure in terms of popular 

information items as being those items that are reported by 

most of the companies nd rare or unpopular items as those 

that are reported by relatively fewer companies. 

Secondly the voluntary disclosure was also evaluated in 

terms of those companies that report more information that 

others. The project found a varying degree of voluntary 

disclosure in the terms of the number of companies reporting 

each information item and the amount of information disclosed 

by the quoted companies, hence giving us a further insight 

into the nature and level of reporting by quoted companies in 

Kenya. 
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CHAPTER ONE 

INTRODUCTION 

1.1 BACKGROUND. 

Corporate financial disclosure is a deliberate 

relea e o~ financial information, wheth r numerical or 

qualit tive, requir d or volunt~ry through form~l or informal 

channels, in order to furnish investment decision makers with 

financial information about the reporting company 

(Gl au tier, 1986]. 

The provision of this financial information has 

implicit welfare effects, not only to th• manner in 

which the welfare of those recvivinQ and using accounting 

inform~tion is susceptible of improvement, but implies 

some judgment aspects as regards th• balance of influence 

which different groups e~ert on the enterprise in 

obtaining advantages for themselves. What therefore, has 

engaged the attention of accounting practioners and 

academics is related to what to r•port, how to 

report, how financial information statements should be 

made more informative and to what extent user ne•ds can 

be met. 

The legal compulsion ~part, corporate reporting has 

undergone significant changes both in terms of 

information content and articulation towards user 

satisfaction. The complexities of modern business due to 

fast changing technology, the changing political 
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factor , the wide spread shareholding and •volution of 

modern management have added new pressures for gr ater 

accountability by carper te managers. Hence, it is widely 

accepted that the purpose of corporate di closure is to 

provide useful financial information to users about the 

reporting entities. A a result, the question of how 

much information should be disclosed by companies has 

been a major issue in the development of corporate 

financial 

Traditionally, corporate disclosure has been 

associated with the stewardship function of management. 

This rested on its ability to provide entity owners with 

information about the activities and transactions 

undertaken by management on their behalf. Shareholders, 

as owners of the firm, have an inter• t to know what 

management has done with the resources entrusted to it. 

Further, it is argued that, the need for reporting 

stems from the need of a capitalist economy to mobilize 

savings for profitable investments. This requires that 

investors be provided with reliable and sufficient 

information for decision making. 

Invariably in the past, whenever there was a demand 

for better information, the traditional response had 

been an increased disclosure of items in the financial 

statements. Given that managers were allowed to choosa 
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what to report and how to report to shareholders, it was 

felt that too much damage would be inflicted on investors 

unless reporting was regulat•d - giving rise to the 

promulgation of companies · Acts and other statutory 

requirements for reporting. 

Corporate reporting in Kenya, like in other countries, 

op rat~ in a regulated environment~ Prior to the 

establishment of the Institute of Certified Public 

Accountants of Kenya (ICPAK), corporate financial 

r eporting in Kenya was regulated by the Companie• · Act 

(Cap 486) and the rules established by the Nairobi Stock 

E~change (NSE). The Act, which remains in its original 

form (1962), prescribes the minimum legal disclosure 

requirements intended to give a true and fair view of the 

annual financial state•ents of the reporting companies . 

Both quoted and unquoted public companies are required to 

lay before their shareholders, in an annual general 

meeting , a profit and loss account and a balance sheet. 

The same annual reports are also supposed to be 

submitted to the registrar of compani 

These legal requirements conform with the stewardship 

function of management. Auditors are expected to qualify 

wheth r the accounts presented comply with the legal 

requirements of th• Companies Act. 

Companies quoted on the Nairobi Stock E~change are 

compelled to comply with the listing requirements of the 
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tack •~change. In addition to the audited balanc• sheet 

and incom statement, they ar• also ~uppoaed to provide 

position. Th•se 

requirem nts together form a packag• of financial 

reports which are suppos•d to b• widely availabl• for 

public consumption. 

When ICPAK was formed, it was mandated to promote 

tandards of professional competence and practices aMong 

m mbers of the institute. As of June,1992 there ar• 17 

accounting standards and one e~poaure draft in K•nya. 

Members of the institute and company director& are 

expected to ensure that the accounting standards are 

complied with. 

Compared to the U.S. and U.K. situation, the &cope of 

reporting regulation in Kenya is limited. There is no 

legal regulation pronounc ments as those of the 

Securities and E~change Commission in the U.S. Thus, 

firms in Kenya seem to have much mor• flexibility in 

disclosure practices, reflecting responses to market 

forc•s. In this situation, corporate disclosure may play 

a bigger role as an information media to the various 

stakeholders-in the absence of adequate regulatory 

frame work. 

However, with the institution of th Capital 

Markets Authority (CMA), we are likely to see more 

regulation of corporate reporting in Kenya in the near 
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future. 

0 velopm•nts in the theory of the fi~m have added a 

new dimen~ion to the role of corporate disclosure. In 

legal terms, a company is a separate entity able to act 

in its own right aa an individual. But in the property 

rights principle (Zimmerman,1986], a firm has no 

separate e~istence but consists of individual• who have 

contracted with the entity for some property rights. 

This group, consisting of shari! holders, creditors and 

managers, is viewed as a team of &elf-interested 

individuals who recognize that their welfare can only be 

sustained if they operated in harmony and in competition 

with other firms. But because of fear that others in the 

group would act in self-interest, they enter into 

contractual agreements whose terms are ~onitored through 

reporting. 

Th agency theory is also closely associated with the 

property rights principle. An agency relationship i5 a 

contr ct under which one or more principals (shareholder•] 

engage another person, the ag nt (manager) to perform 

some service on their behalf, and involves delegation of 

some d cision making authority to the agent. But because 

the agent has superior information about the entity yet 

the principals cannot observe his action , it is assumed 

that the agent will use his &uperior information 

position to ma~imize self interest at the e~pense of the 



principals. That this conflict of interest is c used by 

information a ymmetry (8 aver.C1981)] demands that ~anagers 

undertake reporting in order to remov this information 

asymmetry and facilitate tha monitoring of their p•rformance. 

In recent times, ther fore, corporate reporting has 

hifted from the economic income measur•mant function to 

n informational approach. Under the information 

perspective, corporate disclosure performs an information 

function in the economy. Management is therefore presumed 

to report financial information to be used by thos 

interested in the distribution of wealth of the entity. 

These groups consist of investora, creditors, employees, 

government and the general public. Each group is 

expected to use the information for evaluating the risk 

associated with the entity in order to predetermine the 

riskness of their claims in form of cash flows. Increased 

information, would thus, improve their assessment of the 

future probabilities of the cash flows. This may explain 

the significance attached to pronouncements of corporate 

directors, and the need for information intermediaries in 

form of financial analysts in a developed economy. 

Aware of the interests of the various claimant to the 

entity, managers have the incentive to use 

information reporting as stated earlier for monitoring 

their performance. This informational role of financial 

disclosure is significant for stewardship and agency 
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role of managers and explains the need for financial 

reporting by managers beyond the regulatory reporting 

requirements. 

In a competitive nvironment, professional managers 

are more concerned, not only with the value of their 

firms, but also with thair own reputation as agents of 

various stakeholders. By virtu@ of their positions, they 

are expected to act in the best interest of the 

shareholders, by ensuring higher returns from projects 

undertaken as well as the securities of the firm. In 

fulfilling shareholders' needs, managers have also to 

ensure that the other stakeholders like creditors and 

employees are satisfied. Henca, the pronouncements of 

companies' directors should be evaluated in this context. 

Though several studies have attempted to examine the 

quality of corporate financial disclosure in annual 

reports, there is little literature on financial 

disclosure in Kenya. The few studies include, 

Abanga,(1977) and Amwayi, (1978). These studies ware 

carried out before the setablishment of ICPAK 

In his study, Abanga,(1977) carried out a survey 

among shareholders and managers to determine the extent 

to which financial statements satisfied user needs and 

whether an inclusion of a funds flow statement would 

enhance user needs. His findings indicated that financial 

statements in Kenya did not satisfy investors' needs and 
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that it wa~ n CRssary to introduc a funds flow 

statement. 

In addition, a atudy by Amwayi (1978) on the 

financial practices in the Kenyan public companies, he 

nalyzed the e~t nt to which annual reporta complied with 

the requirements of the Companies· Act, and the 

variation in tha reporting styles, use of terminology in 

the annual reports , and the cant nts and format of th 

director and auditors reports. A wide variation was 

found in the measurement methods, use of ter~inology and 

format of reporting among the firms. It was also found 

that a large number of companies did not fully comply 

with m ny of the disclosure provisions of the companies 

Act. Some companies al o disclosed information above 

to evaluate the 

qu lity of information di closed in the annual reports, 

researchers have used disclosure inde~es to •~plain th 

variation in financial reporting by companies. 

In such studie , fin ncial analysts, bank loan 

officers, and tack brokers are asked to assign weights 

to items that are reported or are •~pected to be reported 

in the financial statements, for their importance in 

investment decisions. The average ratings of e ch item 

will depict its relative importance {Chandra.(1974), 

Buzby, (1974), Chanhall, (1977)}. These studies generally 

showed that financial analysts are more interested in 
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information on operational results (income statement} than 

balance ahe t information. However when compared with the 

firms under study, it was found that few companies 

report d Income Statement information. A similar study done in 

Nigeria also reflected the same tr nd (Wallace,1988). 

Recent studies on the e~tent to which financial 

disclosure varies among companies suggests that this 

differences are influenced by several firm 

characteristics. These studies are based on the 

stewardship function of management and the role of 

financial disclosure in accomplishing this role. The 

degree of disclosure was found to vary according to firm 

size, listing status, number of share holders and size of 

the auditfirm(SinghviandDesai,(1971),and 8uzby,(1975)]. 

Singhvi and Desai,(1971) developed an index of 

disclosure consisting of 34 items of information 

which were used as the basis for a composite measure of 

the extent of the disclosure of these items in annual 

reports. Weights were assigned to these items to reflect 

their relative importance as indicat d by security 

analysts. The extent of disclosure was then 

operationalized by adding the weights assigned to the 

items in each firms ' annual report. 

to identify firms which inadequately disclosed 

information. Th•y found that those firms that had low 

index of disclosure were: 



(1) small 1n ~ize s measured by the number of 

total a~aeta, 

(11) small in size as measured by th• number o~ 

stockholders, 

(111) Audited by small CPA firms. 

the data was subjected to regression 

analysis, th y found that 43.4% of the variation could be 

explained by the firm characteristics under tudy. 

In a similar study, Buzby,(1975) studied the 

relationship between the extent to which selected items 

of information are presented in corporate annual reports 

and two company characteristics _the size of the company 

and its listing status. The extent of disclosure of the 

items in annual reports waa measured by disclosure index 

similar to that used by Singhvi and Desai,(1971). The 

results of Buzby ' s study indicated that the extent of 

disclosure in the annual reports is positively associated 

with the size of a company's assets and not affected by 

listing Status. 

Some of the more recent studies on corporat 

financial disclosure have used the agency theory and 

information 1 role of financial discloaure to •xplain 

differences among firma in their extend of disclosure. 

These studies are based on th• fact that directors of 

corporations, from an agency perspective, have entered 

into a contractual arrangement with 11 the stakeholders 
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of th firm. For example, when a bAnk lends money to a 

company, therei• usually a contractual provision 

requiring the coMpany to main~ain a certain interest 

coverage ratio, above certain level. Thus, generally,it 

requires disclosure of earnings to determine whe~her interest 

coverage has been me~. On the other hand, management has to 

disclose the extent to which it has been able to perform it 

functions to the share holders and other interested parties, 

hence generating further disclosure. 

Using the agency theory, it is asserted that, 

managers have the incentive to use reporting (Watts and 

Zimmerman,(1986)) as a means of inducing shareholders to 

monitor his performance and the terms of the contract. 

Studies which have used the arguments includer Salamon and 

Dhaliwal,(1980),Leftwich,Watts and Zimmerman, (1981), and 

Chow and Wong -Boren,(1987). 

In their study, Salamon and Dhaliwal,(1980) 

Correlated firm aize and voluntary disclosure or 

nondisclosure of segment reports by multi-product firms 

in the U.S. Their findings showed that diversified firms 

which voluntarily disclosed segment sales and earning& 

were significantly larger than firms which did not 

voluntarily disclose such data. 

Further, a study by Leftwich, Watts and 

Zimmerman,(1981) correlated the rate of interim r•porting 

with a firms fixed assets, financial leverage ratio and 
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us of outside directors.Their findings were not 

significant. But th y recommend d ~mong others, th t a 

further and reliable test could be done using an 

evaluation of the importance of the item di closed in 

the interim reports. This inde~ would then be used for 

testing the relationship. 

ln addition,a study by Chow and Wong-boren,(l987) 

investigated the e~tent to which corporations in 

Mexico voluntarily disclosed information above the legal, 

stock e)(cheng~ and ecc:ounting standards" r quirements. 

They used similar methodology a well as some of the 

information items used by Singhvi and Oesai,(1971). Th ir 

findings indicate that the extent of disclosure is 

significantly and positively related to a firm's total 

equity, and not financial leverage and fixed assets. 

1.2 STATEMENT OF THE PROBLEM 

Corporate financial disclosure has undergone 

tremendou change since th first joint stock companies 

w re formed in the Mid-Ninetieth Century. The increased 

disclosure oftently reflect the changing r porting 

environment. Increases in complexities of the environment 

are usually associ~ted with increases in the need for 

greater disclosure. 

Generally corporate disclosure is intended to 

provide useful economic information to the users. Whereas 
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it is agreed that th• range of usera of corporate 

r•ports has expand d, the dominant users remain the 

investors and creditors. Managers on their part have 

access to internal information and n~ed not use th 

corporat• reports. Corporate disclosure is to a large 

~tent influenced by the regul~tory environment which 

consists of the laws, standards and stock exchange rules. 

However, companie will usually disclose more information 

than th• mandatory r•quirements. 

Although research in this area is incomplete, a 

determination of the extent to which companies 

voluntarily disclose more information than the mandatory 

requirements would be useful in guiding the standard 

setters on areas requiring regulation and also help 

financ market participants predict the future state of 

disclosure. The extent of voluntary disclosure is unknown 

and its determination would contribute immensely on the 

reporting status in this part of the world. 

1.3 OBJECTIVES OF THE STUDY 

Th study will end•avour to empirically establish 

th extent to which the quoted compani•s in Kenya 

voluntarily disclose more information than the mandatory 

requirements. 

~.4 IMPORTANCE OF THE STUDY 

The study will be of importance to: 
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( 1 ) Stock brok rs and secur~ty n lyst • 

Since they provide •dvisory services to investors, 

this study may be an invAluable source of information for 

inve tment decisions. 

(1 1) N~irobi Stock Exchange and Capital MarkRts Authority. 

The Study may provide an e~tra insight into the extent 

of corporate reporting by quoted comp•nies, and the possible 

areas that would require regulation. 

111) Acade•ics and students 

This group would increase their knowledge on corporate 

diaclosure in developing countries. 

1.6 OVERVIEW 

The project report is divided into four chapters 

including the present one. The rest of th project 

report proceeds as follows. Chapter two, the literature 

review relates to discussions on some empirical studies 

on corporate reporting, the need for disclosure 

regulation, the concaptual framework and the contents of 

c orporate reports. In chapter three, the research 

methodology including research design, data analysis 

and the findings ar discussed. Chapter four, deals with 

summary of the findings, conclusions, limitations of the 

study and some recommendations for further rese•rch and 

study. 

14 



CHAPTER TWO 

LITERATURE REVIEW 

2.1 EMPIRICAL STUDIES. 

In the last two decades, sevRral authors h~ve 

attempted to examine the adequacy of corporate 

financial disclosure in annual reports from s•v&r~l 

perspectives. Based on their findings, each of them 

has made suggestions on how to improve the quality of 

financial disclosure contained in annual corporate 

r ports. The justification for the above studies are 

on the assertion that improved discloaure is vital if 

it adds to user needs. 

When evidence was first reported in the literature 

about variables associated with thw differences across 

firms in their disclosure, there were no articulated 

theories of firm disclosure decisions. Researchers 

their analysis on the h•uristic 

Anton, (1954) report that one in every large 

companies in the US presents statemwnts to stock 

holder compared to one in twenty for small companies. 

Some researchers have used disclosure indexes to 

explain the nature of financial disclosure by firms 

und r study. In such studies, respondents are asked to 

assign weights to information items reported or are 

e~pected to be report d in financial statements. The 

e~tent of a company's disclosure is measured by the 
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s u m of th w~ights assigned to the items included in 

i ts annual r~ports. 

Buzby (1974) carried a questionnair surv y mong financial 

analysts who were asked to assign weights to information as a n 

i ndication of their importance for investment decision making-

His results showed that analysts considered segment reporting 

of income and sales reporting r~latively important. However, when 

compared to firms under study it was found that relatively few 

companies were found to report these in their annual reports. 

69.7Y. of the companies did not report sales information while 

92.4Y. did not provide segment income data. 

Other researchers have used studies on content of 

disclosure of individual firms in order to support the 

arguments about the inadequacies of existing disclosure 

practices. Similar studies have also been used to illustrate 

the proposition that manag•rs use the financial reporting 

system to present themselv~s in the most favourable 

light. Briloft (1972) used single company analysis whil~ 

others used selected companies (Chambers(1973), Oev(1974), 

Gray (1978). They all concluded that ince shareholders 

are entitled to adequat~ information, many of the public 

quoted companies investigated failed in their 

disclosure for full, fair nd prompt accountability. 

A frequent use of the disclosure of financial 

information by firms is to make inferences about 

disclosure adequacy. A heuristic framework of »more 

disclosure is better" guides many of the these research 
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work. C•rf(1961), for exampl~ davelop•d a ayst•m of 

points of 31 individual items and comput d ind~~ score• 

for ome companies in the US. Superior disclosure was 

then operationalized as a high index score. 

In their study, Baker and Haslem (1973) conducted a 

questionnaire survey of individual inve tor in order to 

d termine their information needs and the sources of their 

corporate information. It was found that 62.4Y. of the 

respondents considered fellow stockhold rs and advisory 

services of financial analysts as their main sources of 

information. A similar study by Chenhall and Juchau (1~77) 

conducted in Australia analyzed the information ne•ds of 

investors of different professions and income levels. 

It was found that investors in Australia relied heavily on 

information sources out ide the corporate report. 

Similar study by Chandra(1975) used 58 

information items of the balance sheet and forecasts. 

His study indicated that: firstly, financial analysts 

are more interested in information items about income 

stat ment and amount of income earned by Corporations 

and on balance sheet information. Secondly security 

analysts are moderately inter•sted in th~ disclosure 

of budgetary proj~ctions and forecasts. Thirdly, that 

price level adjusted annual reports are not appealing to 

analysts. He recommended the preparation of single set 

financial statements with varying degrees of detail or 

multipurpose financial statements . 
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Anderson(1981) investig~t~d th usefulness of 

a c counting and other information disclosed in 

corporate reports to investors in Australia. He found 

that investors widely read the balance sheet, income 

statement and the chairman ' s report. It was also found 

that they ranked th profit and loss account, the 

balance sh~et and Notes to the accounts as the most 

important. Statistical summary, chairman ' s report and 

projections were consider d of moderate importance. 

2.2. THE FOR DISCLOSURE REat.JL.ATION. 

The legal importance attached to financial 

reporting stems from the need of a capitalist society 

to mobilize savings for profitabl• investments. 

Therefore investors must be provided with reliable and 

sufficient information for decision making. However, 

the disclosure of financial information has been 

restricted by the influence of managers who, in th• 

past, have been patrons of the 

profession (Tom kin 1978). 

accounting 

In the developed economies, financial reporting 

operates in a regulated environment. After the stock 

market crash of 1929, it w s widely held that the 

cause was due to inadequate disclosure by compani•s 

quoted on New York Stock Exchange. Con9ress set out 

the Securities Acts of 1933 and 1934 which gave the 

Securities and E~change Commission (SEC) statutory 

powers to ensure full and fair disclosure by companies 

18 



In the early days, financial 

reporting was associated with the stewardship function 

o1 man•gers who have to report to shareholders the 

activities and transactions undertaken on their behalf. 

Financi 1 reporting, therefore, became a meana of evaluating 

management performance. It is logical to argue that under 

the stewardship function, management would &elect an ccounting 

technique which would present financial information in a more 

favorable light. 

For e~ample, given two accounting techniques, like LIFO 

and FIFO, management would select that technique which 

would show a higher net income. Given that managers were 

allowed to choose what to report and how to report to 

shareholders, it was felt that too much damage may be 

inflicted on investors and hence the need for regulation 

of corporate reporting. 

Another argument in favour of regulation rest& on 

the peculiarities of information as a commodity . , 

Since the availability of information to one group 

does not hinder its availability to others, this may 

reduce the demand for information. On the supply 

side, there may be greater gains to managers through 

less disclosure than greater disclosure. Management 

reluctance to release information is attributed to the 

need to safeguard their competitive position through 
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that releasing some of the information would have an 

unfavourable impact on labour relations. Hence th•r• 

may be market in•fficiency unless regulation is 

imposed to correct market imperfections. 

Th~ need for regulation is also associated with 

the principal agent setting. The agent is assumed to 

have access to superior information and since the 

principal cannot observe the agents actions, the 

latter may use this superior information position 

to maximize self-interest at the expBnse of the 

principal. This moral hazard problem (Beav r 1981) 

exists due to information asymmetry. Regulation of 

financial reporting would, therefore, remove the 

superior information position of managers. 

A further argument in favor of reporting standards 

is based on the need for comparability of financial 

information published by companies. It is argued that 

the value of corporate reports is enhanced if they can 

be compared with reports of other companies. In the 

absence of standards, there would be no rewards to 

encourage managers to conform to any reporting model 

for the sake of comparability. Since financial 

statements provide a means through which Managers are 

evaluated in their principal_agent relations, they will 

be willing to conform to reporting standards which, after 

all, have to be verified by an external auditor. 
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Financial information may also affect th~ distribution 

of wealth among investor • Without regulation of 

financial reporting, thos with uperior financial 

information can increase their wealth at the expense 

of the 1 ss informed. In the US, the Securities Act 

made it unlawful to mak false or misle ding 

statements or to omit any material information in 

connection with the purchase or sale of securities. 

These reporting standards reduced the problems 

associated with investor information asymmetry. 

In summary, the logic of financial reporting and 

accounting standard setting is b sed on the necessity of 

harmonizing and narrowing the areas of differ•nces among 

firms in the disclosure, measurement, and methods of 

presentation of financial information in financial 

statements from year to year so that u~ers of financial 

statements can understand and make proper use of the 

statements for decision making. This would give 

credibility to the us~ of financial statements . Michael 

Lafferty (1979) made this point succinctly that, 

• How do you explain to an intelligent 
public that it is possible for two ca.panies 
in th same industry to follow ntirely 
different accounting principles and both get 
a true and fair view audit report? The public 
might want to know how many true and fair 
views •••• and whether there is any coa1100 
standards against which to •easure theta all." 

Taken together, these arguments add up to a case 

for requiring those who prepare financial statements 

and those who use them, to sacrifice some preferred 



modes of b havior in order to gain from similar 

s crifices made by other • The FASB u s an analogy of 

driving behaviour to reinforc thi point.(Goah.1990) 

•Lik~ •otorists who observe traf~ic law• in 
the interest of their own and g neral traffic 
safety, so long as others do tn. sa .. , in 
g~eral, those who have to subordinate their 
individual pref~renc~s to observe accounting 
standards will, in the long run, gain .are 
than they loose. •• 

2. 2 THE CONCEPTUAL FRAt'EWORK FOR CORPORATE REPORT lNG. 

Accounting,like other social sciences and human 

activities, is largely a product of its environment. 

Thisenvironmentconsists of socio_economic_political_legal 

conditions, restraints and influences (Shelfield,1987) that 

vary from time to time. As a result, accounting 

objectives and practices are not the ame a& they were 

in the past, because accounting theory has evolved and 

drastically changed to meet chan;ing d mands and 

influences. Tricker(1977) asserts that, 

Accounting is dependent on the ideology 
and .are of soci ty. It isnotvaluefr e. 
Itis a child of its own culture. Any claiMto 
reportobjective facts has to be set in the 
context of the beliefs of that particular 
cul ture•. 

Therefore, many of the theories developed in 

accounting may not be aimed at explaining known facts 

but mere rationalizations. They are produced to 

buttress preconceived notions(Watts et al,1978). The 
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regulation of reporting and standard setting is 

th r•fore more of a political proc s than scientific 

~actitud•(Mwarania,1983). 

To facilitatv corporate reporting the 

professional accounting bodies have attempted to 

develop a conceptual framework. This fram•work operate• 

like a constitution; it is a coherent system of 

int~rrelated objective and fundamentals that leads to 

consistent reporting standards and prescribes the 

nature, function and the limits of financial accounting 

and financial statements(FASB,1976). 

A conceptual framework performs an invaluable role 

in corporate reporting in several ways: 

(1) To be useful, reporting regulation and 

standard_ setting should build on and relate to an 

established body of concepts and objectives. This 

enables a standard setting body to issue more 

useful and consistent standards in the future. 

(11) New and emerging practical problems 

would be more quickly solved through 

reference to an existing framework of basic 

theory. This enables practioners to dismiss 

certain reporting alternatives if th y fall 

outside the conceptual framework and to focus 

upon logical and acceptable treatment. 

(111) A conceptual framework will increase 

23 



financi~l report users · underst~nding of and 

confidence in financial reporting as it would 

enhance comparability among companies' 

annual reports. 

A number of attempts have been made to develop a 

conceptual framework for corporate reporting. The first 

attempt was a study commissioned by AlCPA in the early 

1960s. Two interrelated monographs are worth 

mentioning. One by Moonitz (1961) and ~nether by 

Sprouse and Moonitz (1962). These reports were aimed at 

developing basic accounting postulates and broad 

principles of accounting as a way of developing general 

accounting principles by AJCPA. 

The second study was the Trueblood Committee 

charged by AJCPA with the development of a set of 

financial statement objectives. These are intended to 

facilitate the establi hment of guid lines for 

reporting and criteria for improving financial 

reporting. The third ffort was commis9ioned in the 

U.K. by the Accounting Standard Committee(1975) (h•re 

after,ASC] which came up with a paper the Corporate 

Report that eventually b came a discussion paper in the 

U.K. 

The fourth and most extensive study is one by the 

FASB, which attempted to operationalize the 

Trueblood Report. The fifth study was written by an 

ac~demic, Edward Stamp, on behalf of the Canadian 
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Institute of Chartered Accountants in 1980 (Peasn 11, 1990). 

Among the late t conceptual framework project reports 

include "Making Corporate Reports Valuable (McMonnies,1988), 

publish~d by ICAS, and the Solomons Report (Solomons,1989), 

commissioned by IASC. Insofar as disclosure is concerned, it 

implies disclosure of all material matters which are material 

to economic decisions and evaluation. Thes• studies et out 

some of the current objectives of financial reporting, the 

users of the reports, the needs of the users and how the 

reporting should be done. 

Although there are important differences of 

detail, all these studies are broadly agreed on the 

following: 

(a) That financial reports are intended to serve users 

and that equity investors and lenders form 

important components 

reports. 

of the users of company 

(b) That th balance sheet and income stat&ment, 

supplemented by statement of changes in 

financial position, are fundamentalfinancial 

statements. 

(c) That users are 

evaluation and decision making, implying that 

the measurement should strive to reflect 

actual economic opportunities soasto steer 

users towards current valuation and estimation 

of future prospects. 
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While th• ICAS study (McMonnies,1988) stresses the 

identification of economic reality, the Salomons Study 

adopts th• concept of repres•ntational ppro ch of 

economic rRlevance. This is con&istent with the 

informational perspective of financial reporting 

2.3.1 THE OBJECTIVES OF CORPORATE REPORTING 

The first part of the conceptual framework study 

is concerned with the objectives of financial 

reporting. To be useful, the objectiv&s should answer 

the following questions; Why are financial statements 

needed? Who n&&d~ thvm? What are the backgrounds of the 

people who need the financial reports? what 

information do they need and how should it be reported 

so that they can understand it?. 

Based on the prevailing situation in the economy 

and in order to provide answers to the above questions, 

financial reporting should provide information: 

(a) that is useful to present and potential 

investors and creditors in making 

rational investm•nt, credit,and similar 

decisions. The information should be 

comprehensible enough to those who have 

a reasonable understanding of business 

and economic activities and are willing 

to study~ the information with diligence. 
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(b) to h&lp pr ent and potential inv&stors 

and creditora and oth r u •rs in 

asses~ing the amounts, timing,and 

unc rtainty of prospective cashflows 

from dividends or inter•st and proce ds 

from the sale, redemption, or maturity 

of securities or loans. 

(c) about the economic resources of an 

enterprise, the claims to those resources, 

and the effects of transactions, events and 

circumstances that change it claims to 

those resources. 

2.3.2. USERS OF FINAHCI AL INFORf1AT ION AND THEIR tEEDS 

The purpose of accounting is to provide 

information which is potentially uaeful for making 

economic decisions which if provided, will 

enhance social welfare (AAA, 1975) The 

adequacy of a given di&closure can only be determined 

within the context of user information 

id ntification. The identification of the target us•rs 

highlights the purpo&es for which th~ information i~ 

used ((8uzby,1974). Knowledge about th• information 

requirements of the various groups helps in 

determining whether general purpos• information sets 

are adequate. If the information ne•ds of the various 

user groups are highly similar, then provision of 

general purpose information is logically &ound. 
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However, if the needs are distinctly different then ~t 

may be necessary to issue different infor~ation sets. 

The Trueblood committee identifies the target users of 

financial information as being those who h ve limited 

authority, ability, or resource to obtain information 

(Glautier 1986). 

An extensive list of corporate r port users is 

given by Harrison (1976) who identifies th• users as being 

management, equity investors, creditors, employees, 

financial analysts, government, business contact group 

and the public. A brief review of their information 

needs would indicate the nature of financial 

information required. 

2. 3.2 (a) 1'1ANAGEPENT. 

A company's management is a major user of 

corporat reports. However, since they have acces~ to 

financial information within the firm, they are neither 

limit d by nor do they have to wait for published 

reports . Nevertheless, management knows that published 

financial reports will provide information about their 

performance (Hendriksen1982). They will therefore keep 

an eye on the potential reaction of other user groups to 

the published reports. 

2.3.2 (B) INVESTORS. 

Made up of current and potential share holders, 

this group is interested in the past, present and 
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future earnings prospects facing camp nies; the 

riskness of investments; liquidity of the entitiesJ 

the quality of management and the •conomic prospect of 

the indu~try in which the companies Ar 

located(Horgren, 1957) 

2.3.2. (C) CREDITORS 

A company's long-term debt holders consist of 

debenture holders and banks that provide long-term 

loans. These are m&inly interested in ensuring thAt 

they will get the interest payments due to them and 

that these payments will be received on tim•. They 

are also concerned with the security of their capital. 

Therefore creditors will mak& use of the published 

reports with emphasis on balance sheet, profit and loas 

account and the funds flow statements (Buzby, 1974). 

2.3.2. (D) EMPLOYEES. 

This group includes both individual employe•s and 

unions. All employees are interest d in their 

future employment and income prospects. Pressure to 

provide employees with more useful reports has helped 

evolve th concept of •mployee report which provide 

them with financial information about the performAnce 

of it firm and its future prospects. The objective of 

employee report is to improve communication and 

employees ' understanding of the manner in which the 

firm is being managed in the interest of all (Glautier, 
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1988). Another aim o~ reporting to employees isto 

improve public rel~tions which may be u5ed for 

collectiv• bargaining (Hendrikaen,1982) 

2.3.2. (E) THE GOVER~T 

The government departments require corporate reports 

for asse sing and att~sting compliance with taxation 

regulations, company law, contractual and leg~l 

obligations and other requirements.(Hendriksen, 1982). The 

reports also provide the economic variabl ~ required for 

National planning 

2.3.2.(F) THE PUBLIC 

The public are a relatively new addition to the 

list of users of corporate reports. People, especially 

those a~fected by an organization·s operation in their 

local area, want to know how the firm i& likely to 

perform in the future. The public is also concerned 

with many environmental aspects o~ organizations and 

th ir ocial responsibility (Glautier,198b). 

2.3.2 OUALITATIVE CHARACTERISTICS OF CORPORATE REPORTS. 

The second part of the conceptual framework study 

is cone rned with examining the characteristics that 

make accounting information use~ul. It relates to 

choosing an acceptable method, amount and types of 

information to be disclosed, and the format in which 

information should be presented _hence determining the 
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alternatives that provide th• most u eful information 

for decision making purposes. 

The FASB in concepts Statement No 2 has identified 

the qualitative characteristics of accounting information 

that distinguish better information from inferior information for 

decision m~king purposes as: 

(1) Relevance. 

This is a characteristic which •mbodies the 

fundamentalnotion that corporate reports should 

seek to satisfy, as far as possible, user information 

needs. This is measured by the capacity of an information 

to make a difference in a decision by h~lping to 

form predictions about the out comes of past, present 

and future events or to confirm or correct prior 

expectations. 

11) Understandability 

Decision makers vary widely in the types of 

decisions they make, the methods of deci ion 

making employed, and their ability to process 

the information.Hence, corporate report preparers 

should ensure there is a balance between adequate 

inclusion of all material matters and the 

need to avoid confusing users by th• provision 

of too much detail. Thus, although theinformation 

presented may be relevant and reliable, it is 

useless to users who do not understand it. 
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(111)R li bility 

The information should be reliable to en ble uaer& 

assess the degre• of confidence r~posed to it. 

Therefore, reli~bility is a quality thAt gives 

assurance that the information is r•asonably fr•e of 

error and bias and is a fAithful repreaentation of 

the facts about th~ entity. 

(IV)Verifiability 

It relates to the enhancement of credibility of 

corporate reports through external auditors 

performance. This also implies the objectivity of 

the data. It is demonstrated when a high 

degree of consensus can be secured among independent 

measurers using the same measurement methods. Reliability 

of information is important for those individuals who have 

neither the time nor the expertise to evaluate the 

factual content of the information. 

VI) Timeliness-

Th@ information used by annual report users should be 

current at the time of making the predictions and 

decisions which is a further notion of relevance 

(VII)Neutrality 

It means the information has to be objective and 

unbiased so that it can meet all the user needs. 

Therefore, the information should not be selected to favour 

one set of interested parties over another 
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VII) COMparability 

Corporate reports &hould be expreased in terms 

which enables users to compar 

results over 

entities. 

time and with oth•r similar 

The enumerated characteristics are indicative of the 

nature and type of disclosure necessary to make 

financial statements sufficiently informative . 

Generally, these characteristics have delineated the 

nature of corporate disclosure and how it can be 

evaluated. There is concurrence on the need to 

identify the users of the information, the purpose, 

mode, amount and timing of the disclosure. Users 

assume that accountants have an understanding of their 

information requirements and do attempt to provide th• 

desired information in the corporate annual reports. 

The inability to attain the required lev•l of adequate 

disclosure may be attributed, in part, to th failure 

of accountants to comprehend the various decision 

models of the various users. 

Variation in user perception of accounting 

message resulting from the us• of alternative 

measurement systems may also hinder the ability to 

meet user needs. Therefore, th• complexity of corporate 

disclosure requires specific orientation to the needs 

of users. It impli s that financial reports should 

focus on those user 9roups and purposes that e~hibit 
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the greate t use of accounting information and the us r 

group, c pable of utilizing accounting information. 

2. 4. THE CONTENTS OF CORPORATE REPORTS 

Though corporate disclosure involv•s the entire 

process of financial reporting, several different 

methods of disclosure are available for financial 

reporting. The selection of the m•thod for disclosure 

depends on the nature of information to b• disclosed 

and its relative importance. It involves reporting 

relevant information both in quantitative and non 

quantitative data. 

A study by Arnold and Moizer(1984) on the importance 

of sources of investment information for financial analysts 

found that analysts in Britain ranked profit and loss 

account as the first, balance sheet a5 s•cond, 

chairman·s report the sixth, and statistical data the 

eleventh. Therefore, compani•s that disclosed more 

profit and loss account and balance sheet information had 

more useful and hence relevant information. 

2.4.1. Financial statements 

These consist of the income statement, balance 

sheet, and funds and cash flow statements. The most 

important and relevant financial information is usually 

shown in these statements. The items shown here 
. 

include; assets, liabilities, net income, and stock 

holders equity. 
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Users of financial statements can det&rmine the 

profitability and solvency of a firm by studying the 

r•lationships b tween the significant assets and 

liability groupings on the balance h et as well as the 

relationship between the revenue and expense groupings on 

the income statement. 

Though the form and contents of financial 

statements evolve over time in response to changing 

business practices, a review of the contents and 

objectives of these statements would highlight the 

contents of financial information contain•d in the 

statements. 

(a) Balance Sheet 

(1) Assets 

An informative balance sheet classifi•s 

resources and commitments of the firm into appropriate 

categories so as to present interpr•table summaries of 

accounting information. Assets are grouped into 

current assets, investments, plant and equipm nt and 

intangibles. This facilitat s understanding and 

analysis by information users. Grouping of the items 

is necessary to permit users of financial statements 

to; 

(1) Make meaningful comparison with past periods 

and with other firms; 

(ii) Obtain a reasonable understanding of the 

financial position and operations of the firm; 
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(ii i) M ke predictions regarding future cash flows. 

The summarization and classification giv~s us•rs 

a choic regarding what is important and what is 

not important and what should be mphasized. Though 

this limits the range of choic•s, r l•vant 

relationships can be disclosed by re~rranging the basic 

classification . For example, current liabiliti s are 

frequently subtracted from current assets to show 

working capital. 

Alternatively, monetary assets may be shown separately 

from non monetary assets. This latter claasification 

is particularly important when reporting in an 

environment of changes in price levels. 

11) Liabilities and Source& of capital 

Since the basic objective of disclosure is to provide 

investors, creditors and other stakeholders about the 

efficiency and stewardship of management to their 

prospectiv stakeholders, the balance sheet would 

specify the curr•nt liabilities, long-t•rm 

liabilities and owners equity. 

b. Income StateMent 

Income reporting is based on rules and procedures 

that are legal and internally consistent. Since 

accounting income is based on revenue realization and 

matching of expenses with revenue, it is assumed that 

the major activities of the firm can be measured and 

reported. 

36 



The measurement of the periodic profits should 

ensure that the monetary value of the shareholders 

equity is maintained intact. Hence, managers must 

operate at a profit that will increase the shareholders 

equity- measured between the beginning and the end of 

the financial year. 

The income statement also depicts the earning 

potential of the firm·s assets. This is e~pressed in 

terms of the present value of all cash generated in 

the future. This concept of economic income is stated 

as the change in the earning power of the enterprise 

during the accounting period plus any distributed 

surplus to the share holders( Hendriksen, 1982) 

(c) StateMent of Changes in F~nancial Position 

The objective of the statement of changes in 

financial position (or funds flow statement) is to show the 

significant inflow~ and out flows of liquid resources 

during the year. 

Th statement can be used to highlight the financing 

and investing activities not affecting liquid rRsources 

in the same year. It has the advantage of illuminating 

the short-term borrowing and repayment of cash without 

affecting the basic availability of ca6h for other uses. 

Funds statements provide information regarding the 

solvency and financial flexibility as well as information 

about the financing and investing operations of the firm. 

It follows that the statement provides a 
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reconciliation between the openin9 and closing balance 

sheets for a given accounting period through an 

explanation of the chang•s which have occurred. This 

explanation is given in form of an analysis of the 

sources of additional funds availabl• to the firm during 

the accounting period as well as an analysis of the 

manner in which they have been utilized. 

Consequently, this statement covers both the 

funds internally generated and additional external funds 

obtained during the accounting period. Therefore the 

statement deals with the changes which hav• occurred in 

the size of the business, as well as changes in the 

structure of the assets, liabilities and invested 

capital. 

(2.4.2) Footnotes And Supple~tary lnforeation 

Footnotes are useful in financial reporting 

because they provide fuller disclosure of events and 

relevant data. The main objective is to disclose 

information that cannot be pres&nted adequately in 

the body of a statement. They are used for: presenting 

nonquantitative information; disclosing qualifications 

and restrictions to items in the statement; reporting 

greater amount of detail than can be presented in the 

statement; and for presenting quantitative and 

descriptive material of secondary importance. 

The common types of footnotes used are: 

(i) Explanations on techniques or changes in method and 
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account~ng policy 

(ii) E~planations of rights of cred1tors to sp cific 

as ets or priorities of regular nature, 

(iii) Disclosure of contingent assets or liabiliti• 

(v) Descriptive transact~ons aff•cting capital stock 

and rights to equity holders and, 

(vi) Descriptions of excutionary contracts. 

However, notes to the accounts should not be 

used to correct the wrong treatment of items in 

the main financial statements. 

2-4-3 THE AUDITORS' REPORT. 

Th audit certificate is not the place to disclose 

significant financial information about the firm, but 

it performs disclosure functions for the following 

types of information. 

(a) Material effects of using accounting 

methods different from those generallyaccept•d. 

(b) Material effects of changing from one 

generally accepted accounting principle 

to another. 

(c) Differences of opinion between the auditor and the 

company regarding the acceptability of accounting 

methods used in the reports. 

This disclosure function by the auditor is done so 

that users are not misled regarding the 

comp~rability of th• reports with those of other firms 

or the consistency with other periods. 
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2.4.4. DIRECTORS' REPORTS 

Apart from the above financial reports which may 

b prepared by the accountan , management c n also 

prepare reports which may b& valuable to corpor~t• 

report users. The additional information disclosed in 

this report include:-

(i) Unusual events and changes during the year that 

affected the op•rations of the firm. 

(ii) 

(iii) 

E~pectations regarding the future of the industry 

and the economy and the role of the firm in these 

e~pectations. 

Plans for growth and chang&s in operations in the 

following periods. 

(iv) The amount and expected effect of curr•nt 

anticipated capital e~penditure and research 

effort. 

The non financial ev nts and changes should indicate 

the strength, opportunities, threats and weaknesses of the 

firm. These changes would include the shift in top 

management and policies and technological improv•ment. 

Management tendency of presenting only optimistic 

e~pectations has tended to weaken the significance and 

r levance of their report meaningless. However, 

if appropriately handled, they could present the most 

useful information to users because it has a decision 

making information. 
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CHAPTER THREE 

3:0 RESEARCH f'ETHODOLOGY AND DATA ANALYSIS 

This Chapter details out the r~search d•sign and 

data Analysis in order to achieve th• objective of the 

study set out in chapter one. 

3 .1 RESEARCH I"ETHODOLOSY 

3.1.1 Research Design. 

The study was e~ploratory in natur , and thus no 

hypothesis could be tested. 

3.1.2 Population 

The population consisted of all the companies listed 

on the Nairobi stock E~change during the period 1986 -1992 

(See appendi~ 3). However, companie~ in the finance 

and investment sector wer excluded from the population under 

study. This restriction was done in order to ensure uniformity 

of reporting. Financial institutions and insurance companies 

have to comply with the Banking and Insurance Acts, a 

requirement which does not apply to the camp nies in the 

population. 

publicly quoted companies were preferred to unlist d 

companies due to availability of their annual reports. These 

companies are required by the Nairobi Stock E~change regulations 

to avail their annual reports to the secretaria~ o~ the Stock 

Exchange. The companies' Act also compels these companies to 

ma~e annual submission of their publish•d accounts to the 
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registr r of companies. The population was mAd• up of 41 

compani s. 

Privat• and publicly unquoted companion where excluded in 

the survey because they normally do not publish their financial 

reports, making it difficult to obtain their annual accounts. 

A five year period was also chosen for the study 

because these companies are legally required to k~ep 

their annual published accounts for only five years. 

This would therefore enaure availability of data. 

1986 and 1992 was chosen to ensure availability of 

annual reports for the period of study 1987 - 1992. 

3.1.3. SAMPLE 

The rules of sampling, used in this study were as 

follows: 

1. A company must have been quoted continuously 

from 1986 to 1992. This ensured availability 

of annual reports for all companie6 in the Sample. 

2. There should be at least three and not more 

than six companies in each industrial 

grouping. This criteria was adopted so as to 

attain a repres ntation of all the industrial 

groupings in the sample. A sample of 32 companies 

representing 78% of the population was used./ 

Given the time limit, the sample was considered adquate 

enough to draw inferences on the level of voluntary 
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disclosure in Kenya. A list of the compan~ • included in the 

sample is given in appendix 4 

3.1.4 DATA COLLECTION 

The study relied entirely on secondary data obtained from 

the annual reports of the sample companie for a period of five 

years. The corporate reports were obtained either from the 

registrar of companies or the secretariat of Nairobi Stock 

Exchange. Each annual report was reviewed so s to select 

quantitative as well as non quantitative information items that 

are voluntarily disclosed therein. 

3.2 DATA ANALYSIS 

3.2.~. Identification of Voluntary Disclo ure lnfor•ation Items 

Through reference to a check list of the requirements of 

the companies· Act, Appendix (1), Kenya Accounting Standards, 

Appendix (2) regulations of Nairobi Stock Exchange and prior 

studies, including [(Bradish (1965), 9inghvi and Desai (1971), 

Gyan Chandra (1975), Buzby (1975), Barret (1976), Firth (1979), 

Eng and Ha seline, (1982), Chow and Wong-Boren (1987.) and Wallace 

(1988)], a list of voluntary disclosure items was generated. 

Appendix (4). 

The pr liminary list consisted of 50 information items that 

Kenyan quoted companies voluntarily disclosed in their annual 

reports . The raw data for the information items is a summery for 

each industrial sector. 

This list was reviewed by a practicing auditor(from 

BellHouse) to confirm that they are not part of th• mandatory 
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requirem nts. A final li t of 40 information it ms w s th n used 

for constructing the voluntary disclosur 

given in appendi~ 3. 

inde~. Th~s list ~s 

3.2.2. E~tent o1 Volunt ry Disclosure. 

Th e~tent of voluntary disclo&ure was analys•d in two 

stages. First, the number of companies disclosing each 

information it m was u•ed to d termine the popular and rare 

items of disclosure. Secondly, th number of information items 

disclosed in each annual report was then used to calculate a 

disclosure index depicting the quality and level of disclosure in 

each annual report. A disclosure inde~ is given as the numb r of 

information items disclosed voluntarily by a firm. 

3.2.2. (a) Popular and Rar Jte s of disclo&ure. 

The number of companies disclosing each information it m as 

shown in Appendi~ 4 was used to analyse and d termine the popular 

and rar items of disclosure. 

Table 1 below shows the number of comp nies disclosing each 

information item in 1991. This period was chosen because it 

reflects the most recent level of reporting and also because it 

has the highest number of firms disclosing financi l information 

as well as the highest disclosure inde~. 
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TAB....E 1 

Information Item 1\b:of Cbs: 
Disclosi1"'19 ttl@ 
percentage 
information Y. 

~ Projections o1 b.Jsin s prospect• 32 100 

2 Statistics of assets ( 3-5years) 31 97 

3 Five years statistic on financial ratios 30 94 

4 Statistics on dividends 'z::l 91 

5 Charts depictiOQ performance Z7 84 

6 Statistics on profits (5 years) 2b 81 

7 Statistics on volume of production 24 75 

8 Details of terms, currency, and scurce6 
of loans (5_years) ~ 72 

9 t-Unan resource dev•Iopment 22 67 

10 Historical sun-maries on Financial leases 21 66 

11 canpetitive position of pn:xU:t 20 63 

12 Forecasts of demand, production and profit 19 'Yl 

13 Information on cost control 18 56 

~4 Oetai 1 s of debtors in foreign currency, 16 50 
local currency 

15 Statistic& on product price& 15 47 

16 Information on research & developnent 15 47 

17 chairman's Report in Kiswehili 13 41 

18 Ccrltr ibution to government Revenue 12 :38 

19 information on marketing activities 11 34 

20 FQC"'eiqt currency earned & recei vl!d. 10 31 

21 segment reports 10 31 
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·-f22. Break dc:w1 of ottwr 1i0Un:vs of incane (J9 28 

23 Expenditure of employ welfa~ (J9 28 

24 Cost of goods sold (J9 28 

25 Management policy and ~ls 08 25 

26 ~f~ce ~penditure 08 25 

27 Employee safety measures & t.b .of accidents 08 25 

28 Informaticr~ en teci'Ylology transfer 07 22 

'z:l Thni!e years detai 1 s of capital e)(pencliture 07 22 

30 Ten year details of working capital 06 19 

31 Q.Jality central measures 06 19 

32 Five year statistics on ta>e and vat 05 16 

32 Social responsibility contributicr~ 04 13 

34 Details of operation e>epenses 03 9 

35 Bad and dOJbtful debts (three Years) 03 9 

36 Qualifications and experience of directors. 03 9 

37 Expenditure on salaries and w.119es (12. 6 

38 Types ot assets and shares paid . 02 6 

39 E>ependi ture on insurance 01 3 

40 Valuation of fi>eed assets for 3- 5 years . 01 3 
shares, ENSmings 

Frcn tt. above table, the nuntlar of firrrs disclosing each 

i tem ranges fron 1 to 32, with a mean of 17. The frOSt popular 

.infonnaticn i terns disclosed are: 

1) lnformaticn en econcmic and a..tsiness prospects. 

2) 3 -5 years 9.Jnmary or statistics of company assets . 

3) 5- years statistics on financial ratios 
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4) Five years • statistics en dividl!nda. 

5) Charts depicting p&rfonnanc:•. 

6) Statistics en profits. 

7) Statistics on vol~ of production. 

8) Oetai l s of terms, currency and sources 

of loams for ~ year. 

These eight items are disclosed by at least 5e"'II!!ty five percttnt 

of the companies. At tte extreme end, the items-. that were not popular 

include: 

(a) Details of valuation of fi><ed assets for 5 y•ars. 

(b) Expenditure en insurance •• 

(c) Expenditure en salaries and wages. 

(d) Qualifications and experience of directors. 

(e) Provisien for bad and do.Jbtful debts for 1:hre@ years. 

(f) Oost of operations. 

The number of firms r-eporting e.ch information item were analysed for 

the five years so as to establish the trend in corporate disclosure in the 

last five years as shcw'l below: 
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TPB..E 2 

Informatia1 Item l'a:l:of Cos:disc: losing tt-e 
in1ormaticn 
1991 1990 1989 1988 1987 

1 Projecticrls of business prospi!'Cts 32 32 32 32 32 

2 Statistics of assets (3-Syears) 31 30 '2!7 30 30 

3 Five years statistic on financial ratiO!I 30 '29 '2!7 Z7 28 

4 Statistics on dividends '29 30 29 28 26 

5 Olarts depicting performance Z7 Zl 26 26 25 

6 Statistics on profits (5 ye-ars) 26 25 'Z7 23 23 

7 Statistics on volume of production 24 24 24 23 24 

8 Detai 1 s of terms, currency, and l&oOUrces 
of loans (5_years) 23 22 23 21 20 

9 1-UnNin rescurc~ c:ievelopment 22 22 20 20 20 

10 Histor-ical Sl.WJlmar"ies on Financial leas£OS 21 24 23 23 21 

11 canpetitive positicrl of product 20 19 19 19 19 

12 Forecast~ of demand, productiat and profit 19 18 17 16 17 

13 In1ormaticn en cost control 19 18 17 18 15 

.14 Details of debtors in foreig1 currency, 16 17 16 16 15 
local ilnd government 

15 Statistics at product prices 15 17 15 14 13 

16 Infonnaticn at research & developn&nt 15 15 15 14 14 

17 DlairllliliO~ Report in Ki!iWilhili 13 13 14 12 12 

18 Caltributicn to government Revenue 12 .13 10 12 12 

19 information en marketing activities 11 13 12 10 CR 

20 Fot""eign currency earned & rwceived . .10 11 10 10 07 

21 ~t reports 10 10 08 <::R 08 
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Z2 briNk dooo.n of other sources of inconw (R 10 (R 07 08 

23 Expenditu~ of ~loy~ wel1are (R (R (Y1 08 07 

24 Cbst of goods sold (R 08 08 - -

25 Management pol icy and goals 08 07 07 00 08 

26 Office Expenditure 08 06 07 07 06 

27 Employee safety measure & 1\b. of accident& 08 (R 06 06 07 

28 Information a1 tec:ITlology transfer 07 07 06 03 04 

29 Thr"ee years det:oails of capital l?)(penditure 07 05 05 06 05 

30 Ten year details of working capit•l 06 06 07 05 04 

131 !lJoal i ty control measures 06 05 06 03 

32 Five year statistics on t.ax and vat 05 05 - - -

32 Scx:ial respcnsibi li ty contribution 04 03 - - -

34 DEuils of operatia~ Ei')(penses 03 02 01 - -

35 Bad and doubtful debts (three Years) 03 01 - - -

36 !lJali ficatia~ and e><peri~~nce of directors. 03 - - - -

"S7 Expenditure a1 sal&ries and Wllges 02 02 - - -

38 Types of assets and shares paid. (y2 01 - - -

39 Expenditure on insurance 01 01 01 01 -

40 Valuation of fixed assets for 3- 5 years. 02 01 - - -

Fran t.re table above, it can be seen that si)(ty percEnt of these 

infonnatiCI"' items had an increase in the f'lUIYlber of firms in which the 

infonnatiCI"' was reported withaJt any change in tt-. nt..lmbet'" of 'firn& in which 

the information was reported since 1987. 1-bever thirty percent of tt-ese items 

did not have a clear pattern in the trend of the ~ of finr& in which they 
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ar reportEd. In general, tt-erefelnit it may w.tatecl tt-.t there was .., incr 

in the number of companies reporting the the financial infonnatia"l. 

In additic:::n to variatial in ttw f"ll..l"rlr:> of firms ntpOrti.ng ~h infonnatiO"'l 

item, a classificatiO"'l of the items was mad4!t into~ 

( 1) Balilfle2 stEe1: data. 

This is informatiO"'l that calCern the fiNneial positia~ o'f the firm. 

Th& information reported should n:.olate to the assets, liabilities and cwners 

equity in a tnanf"lltr that is E!)(teflsively e>eplained rrore than tt'-e legal mandatory 

requirements. 

This reflects the ability of canpany directors to manage the resources of the 

company in the best interest of their share holders and hence guarantee them 

r-E-election since sharvholder will ha-v& had a good rwputatic:::n in the agency 

setting. 

( u) forec.astts. 

In this study forecasted data raf&r"'& to infonnatiO"'l pertaining to 

projections of some future E!'VEI"lts the occurrence of which will affect the 

performance of tt-e finn and hence its stakeholders. It includeda estimated 

cash flow; projected productiO"'l, sales and &)tpected dividends for the coming 

year. 

(111) Jncare stai:enEnt Data. 

This refers to informatioo items that cc:n:er-n tt& inca.e statement and 

information which affects the CIIJ'O..nt of income earned by a c~. 

(1Y) Statistical data. 

This is informatic:::n that provides a general picture of the J»rformance of 

the firm. For example a statistical analysis of the trend in increase or 

decrease in the value of assets for three or I1'IOn!' years have been CO"'lsidered 
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as statistical data. This informatioo is intendEd to provide at a glance, a 

clear picture of the state of Affairs of the firm, to th& annual report 

users. 

(v) 

This information is provided in form of past ~ormanc• data, and it 

takes the form of informatic::n on specific performance data for the last 

several years. It is intended to provide infonnatic::n on tte ability of the 

firm to achieve certain performanc• objectives. 

(Vl) Sbc:ial Data. 

The objecti~ o1 this quantitative and nonquantitative information is to 

sl"'laN hc:w the company has be&n able to deal with its internal and external 

problems. Some of the informaticn that may be voluntarily disclosed include: 

(a) Scx:ial respcnsibility information. 

(b) perlonnanc:e of employees. including labour relations 

( c ) Management policy and goa 1 s. 

(d) Gllali ficaticns and e>cperienc• of directors. 

(vll) other Stats.::nts 

Pny information that do not belc::ng to tte above si>e catttgaries falls 

Lrlder this classificaticn. These include information 

c:Jeov•lopment, expenditure oo marketing activities; and 

measures. 

oo research and 

quality central 

The table below st"o& the numi:Jer of companies which voluntarily disclosed 

each category of information according to the above claasificaticns. 
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TAB..£ 3 

DISTRIB.Jri!W CF N..I'IER CF ~IES 

information Types ~of companies percentage 

Sutistical Data 27 81.35 

income statements 19 56.25 

Balance Sheet Data 17 53.13 

Historical data 15 46.88 

Ot.her statement 10 31.25 

Social data 07 21.88 

Forecasts 06 18.25 

Table 3 abcNe s~ that 27 canpanies, reflecting 81.25% of sample the 

companies companies disclosed statistical data, followed by incane statement 

data with 19 companies. The least disclosed data was that of forecasts (6 

companies). The social data (seven companies). 

This implies that most of these companies voluntarily disclosed 

information in form of statistical data. Hence, the most pop..alar data 

disclosed was the statistical data followed by income statement and historical 

sumnary data. The inccme statement data ccnsists of wagE'"6, c06t of goods 

sold, foreign currency earned and spent and segment reports. The unpopular or 

rare infonnaticn was forecasts and social data. 

The data was also categorized into the number of items di!ielosed in each 

of the seven intormaticn grD.lPings as shc:w'l below in table four below. 
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Table 4 

DISTRI.BJTI~ (F lNUft\TI~ IlB'tS 
1991 

Informaticn N...wnbllr of Percentilglt. 
Items 

1. Statistical Data 10 25 

2. Income Statenant 8 20 

3. Historical 9.Jnmary 8 20 

4. Ott-er statements 6 15.5 

5. Balance St-eet 3 7.5 

6. Social Data 3 7.5 

7. Forecasts 2 5 

40 100 

From tlw alx:Ne table, it can be seen that statistical data cc:ntains the 

greatest number of infonnaticn items (10 items), representing 25 percent of 

the informaticn items disclosed by the satJllle c~ies. Ol the other hand, 

forecast data had two infonnaticn items repr-.senting cnly five percent 

of the informaticn items. Balance sheet and social data both had 3 items each 

representing 7.5 percent of the items di!SClosed. 

The data has cn:e again informed the findings in figure 3 that these 

quoted companies reported tJDre statistical data. 

3.2.2. (b) Cbality af llisclaare 

Al tha.&gh there appears to be a v•riaticn in the number ot companies 

disclosing each item and category of informaticn, cc:nsiderable divergence also 

exists am::ng the sample firms· e><tent of voluntary disclosure. This 

disclosure ir)de)c as a quality of corporattt financial disclosure, is sh:::w'l by 

the number of information items disclosed by each firm. ThereiOI""e, the 
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disclosur index o1 firm is given by number of informatim items 

voh ..... tarily disclosed by tre firm in its aroual accOlrlts. The h:1gher tre 

number of infonnaticn items, tre higher tt-e quality of ~p::::rting. 

Table 5 bela.. sro...s the disclosure index for tt-e sample compill'lies in 1991. 

TAB...E 5 

Spatial discl05LJI""e in arTlUal r ep:w ls in 1991. 

Nalre of O:Jnpany Discl09Ure Percentage 
index 'l. 

B.A. T. Kenya 39 97.5 

E .A. Bag and Cordage 35 87.5 

l)u')lop Kenya Ltd 33 82.5 

C.M.C. ~ldings Ltd 33 82.5 

Brooke Bend Liebeg Kenya Ltd 32 00.0 

Kenya Naticnal Mills 32 00.0 

1-l.ttchings Biemer 31 77.5 
Carbacid Investments Ltd 31 77.5 

Marshalls E.A. Ltd 30 75.0 

Samb.Jri Portland Cement Co. Ltd 30 75.0 

Kenya Orchids Ltd 28 70.0 

E .A. Portland Cement Ltd 27 67.5 

t<eny• Breweries 27 67.5 

Kenya Hote 1 s Ltd 26 65.0 

E.A. Cables Ltd 26 65.0 

Sasini Tea and Coffee Ltd 26 65.0 

Pearl Dryc 1 eaners 25 62.5 

Kapchorua Tea Canpany Ltd 25 62.5 
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8a.mann and Company Ltd 25 62.5 

~rica Tours & Hotels Ltd 25 62.5 

Nation Printers 25 62.5 

Expres5 Kenya Ltd 24 /:AJ.O 

George Williamson Ltd 24 f:A).O 

East African O~ygen 23 57.5 

01 Paj ta Ranching Company Ltd 23 57.5 

O::nsolidatecl t-bldings Ltd 22 55.0 

Ti m Sales 21 52.5 

East African Road Services Ltd 21 52.5 

L i rruru Tea ~y Ltd 20 50.0 

Kenya Oi 1 Co Ltd 17 42.5 

Car & General Kenya Ltd 16 40.0 

E.A. Packaging Ltd 15 37.5 

The quality of ditocl0!1U.r1! ranged from discl09Ure inde>e of 15 representing 

37. 5 Y. , to 39 ~resenting Cf7. 5 Y., with a mean of 25.5 and range of 24. Ninety 

percent of tt-e companies had a disclosure index of more than 20 which was 

equi valent to 50 percent of the overall disclosure inde>< of the sample 

cc:::wnpanies. 01ly three companies had a disclosure inde>< les~ than 20. It means 

t hat t.here is generally a higher q.Jality of disclosure for tt"lE> sample. 

The overall disclosure inde>< was desegregated according to ttw the •ight 

i nOJ.strial groupings. As sl-cwl in table 6. The lowest and highest disclosure 

index were 19.6 and 36, representing 90"1. and 49"1. of the total disclosure ind x 

respectively. The other six industrial sectors had ttwir indexes ranging 

between Z2.6 and Z7, also representing a percentage range bet~ 56.4Y. and 

67"1. respectively. 

55 



Table 6 also shcw"l that tt& manufacturing sector had tt-e best quality of 

corpcrate voh..,tary financial disclosure and tt'e printing sector had the 

TAB..£ 6 

DISTlUB.JTIQ\1 CF Dis:::l..CB...It INrEX BY II'.O..BTJU~ 9ECTCR3. 

Industry. Disclosure inde)( Average 
rowth 

1987 1983 1989 1990 1991 rate 

1. Mcn..lf ac turing 31.3 33.3 32 34.3 36 3.5 

2. 1-bte 1 s, F oocls .-ld 23 22.4 23.8 25.6 'Z/.6 5.8 
beverages 

13. Trading 20.3 19.7 23.3 23.3 'Z7 8.25 

4. O:nstn.JC tic:.n 24 25.3 23.6 25.7 26 2.1 

5. Pl antati01s 21.8 22.3 23 24.8 25 3.67 

6 Energy & gas 18.8 20 22 22.8 24.5 2.1 

I 7. l"btor & Transport 22.4 21.6 22.8 22.2 22.6 6.9 

8 Printing,Publishing 16.3 15.7 17.3 18.3 20.7 6.7 
and paper 

Ch the overall, as shclw1 in the table si)( be lew, the trading sector had a 

marked increase of 17 informaticn items in the level of d.iscl09Ure CN r the 

five years period. This is reflected in its relatively high average grcwth 

r-ate of 8.25% of voluntary disclosure in tt-e per-icx:l of study. 

Cawersely, the printing, publishing and paper sector increased by3 

information i terns. Three of the industrial sectors revealed a gradual 

increase in the level of disclosure while there appears to be no consistent 

pattern in the disclosure index of the energy and motor industrial other 

sec tors aver the five 
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year period. Tre energy and ccn truc::ticn sectors had ttw lCN!St growth of 

voluntary disclosure. This was 'followed by tl"e I'J'IarA.lfactur.ing sactor with an 

average growth rate of 3.5. 

Hence, despite its high level of disclosure, tl"e manuf cture sector did not 

have a very high growth rate of rep:rting. 

The average index for 1991 and treir their asscx:iated stilndard dl!vi ticn for 

each of the eight industrial classifications are given in table 7 below. 

TPa..E 7 

A\.eWE Dls:LCB.FE It.DEX Fffi 1991 {lll() n-£ PES:£. IA TED 
STPUlPRO IEVIATJG\1 Fffi Ero-f li'ID..STRY 

Average std: Covarianc 
Incllstry Index Deviat.icn 

1 . Manufacturing 35.67 2.42 0.07 

2. H:>tels, fa:Jd and 27.6 2.7 0.1 
bell.,.. ages 

3. Trading 27 3.48 0.13 

4. Ccrlstructicn 26.00 4.00 0.15 
Material 

5. PlantatiO"ls 25 4.00 0.16 

6. Energy & gas 24.25 5.06 0.21 

6. f'btor and transport 24.8 6.83 O."R 

7. Printing Publishing 20.67 2.7 0.25 
and paper 

The r-esul ts shc::w'l in table 7 above ~ that ccmpanies falling Lnder the 

~facturing sector had tl"e hi.ghest average disclosure ind&>< during tt-e 1991 

financial year. lt was follo.Ed by those ccmpanies in the hotels, focx:ts and 

beverages sector. Tt-e coefficient of variatiO"l (Cov) conp.Jted in the third colunn 

of tabl e 7 has sto-.n that the same manufacturing sector had tl"e lOESt covariance 

oi 0 . 01. 
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This implies that canpanies in this manufacturing sector had relatively clustered 

rep::ll"'" t i ng and hence almost having ~imilar di!IClosure inde><. Tt-e ne)(t c hapter 

prov1des the sumnary o1 the findings, the ccn:::lusicrl, limitatia1s to the study and 

directions for further research. 
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CHAPTER F~. 

4.1 Sl.J1'11"1ARY .and CONCLUSIONS 

This study has attempted to investigate And present the 

e~tent of voluntary financial disclosure in 32 quoted compani s 

in Kwnya. The purpose of this fourth and final ch pter is to 

present a brief summary of the main findings of the project and 

to draw some possible conclusions from the findings. The chapter 

also presents the limitations of the study and some directions 

for further research and study. To be able to draw appropriate 

conclusions from the findings of the study, it is necessary to 

analyse how the objective of the study was attain•d in chapter 

one and two of the project. 

It is generally acc@pted that the purpose of financial statements 

is to furnish investment decision-makers with information about 

the company issuing the statements. Since the inception of joint 

stock companies, Financial disclosure has undergone e~ceptional 

innovation due to the changing business, politicAl factors, wide 

shareholding and evolution of management. 

Hence, the primary purpose of publishing corporate reports 

has been the presentation of financial information to 

proprietors, showing how their funds have been utilised and 

profits have been derived from such resources. Todate, the 

question of how much information should be disclosed, and the 

ex tent to which usstr n eds can be ident.i tied and sat.isaf ied has 

occupied the attention of the accounting profession. 
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In a ma~ket economy, 

by companies due tol-

ther• is demand for greater d closure 

1 ) The need for quoted companies to provide adequat 

information for decision making by those interested in the 

distribution of wealth of these companies. 

2) The need to remove the infe~ior information position of 

shareholders through corporate so 

information asymmetry between m~nagers and shareholders in a 

principal agent relationship. 

3) The ability to •nhance comparability of information time and 

between firms and industrial sectors. 

Corporate annual reports may contribute to meeting the 

information needs of investors and creditors who are the 

principal annual report users. These groups use the information 

for:-

a) Assessing the effectiveness of the entity in achieving 

corporate objectives including 

obligation . 

b) Evaluating managerial 

investment plans. 

compliance with stewardship 

and efficiency in 

c) Ascertaining the •~p•rienc• and background of the company 

directors and its officials. 

d) Assessing the economic stability, vulnerability and capacity 

of the ~eporting entity to make future reallocation of its 

resources. 

In order to disclose useful information, accountants have 

developed a conceptual framework for reporting. The conceptual 
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framework is like a contitution on the basis of which new 

standards can be formulated and pr scribes the objective&, 

nature, functions and limits of corporate financial disclosure. 

To be useful, corporate reports should provide financial 

information that is relevant, understandable, reliable, 

verifiable and timely to those who use these reports for decision 

making. 

The project has established 40 information items which are 

voluntarily disclosed by the quoted companies in Kenya. On close 

examination and ranking of items, it is found that at least 70% 

of the companies disclo$e eight of these items. It implies that 

these items are either of importance to user ne•ds or have been 

easy to disclose. 

These information items are:-

( i ) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(V) 

(Vi) 

(vii} 

(viii) 

Projections of business prospects 

Statistics on valuation of assets for the last three 

years. 

Five years statistics on financial ratios 

Statistics on dividends 

Charts depicting performance 

Five years statistics on performance 

Statistics on volume of production 

Details of terms, currency and sources of loans 

These are mainly disclosed as supplementary information or 

notes to the accounts. On the other hand, seven of these 

information items were disclosed by not more than 10Y. of the 

companies. 

61 



The items disclosed inlcude:-

(i) Details of operation e~penses 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

(vi) 

(vii) 

Provision for bad And doubtful debt for 3-5 y•ars 

Qualification and e~perience of directors 

E~penditure on salaries and wages 

Types of assets and shares acquired during the year 

ExpenQiture on insurance 

Comparative fixed a~set valuation for a period of 3 

years 

The above findings appear to indicate that managers are more 

willing to disclose voluntarily, information that depicts their 

stewardship role as custodians of the companies resources. This 

is shown by the high ranking of the statistical data. 

The findings also indicate that relAtively very few 

companies are willing to release information that would reflect a 

managers ability to generate earnings. This is ahown by the fact 

that information related to accounting earnings wa~ disclosed by 

very few companies. 

An analysis of the different classification of the 

information items show that the statistical data is not only 

disclosed by many companies, but that a wide range of financial 

information is disclosed as well. Out of the 40 information 

items 10 of them may be classified as statistical data. 

Apart from the statistical dAta mentioned above, some of the 

additional information include statistics of past profits on:-

a) Last 3 - 5 years 

b) Product prices 
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c) Statistical analysis of a number of subsidiaries acquired in 

terms of assets and shares paid. 

d) A statistical presentation of working capital. 

The next category of financial information disclosed 

reflected income statement data which also consisted of 8 

information items, representing 20% of the ov•rall information 

voluntarily disclosed. The income stAtement data consisted of:-

i) Foreign currency earnings and expenses 

ii) Segment reports 

iii) Information on cost control 

iv) Details of operation e~pensRs 

v) Expenses on insurance, sAlaries and cost of production 

vi) Performanc@ of branches 

vii) Breakdown of other sources of income 

When analysed on the basis of industrial classification, it 

was found that the manufacturing sector had the best quality of 

corporate disclosure, indicating th~t thia sector responds more 

to market demands for better information than the rRst of the 

industrial sectors. However, on an lysing the trends of growth 

in the level of reporting, it was found that there was a higher 

rate of growth of 6.7% in the printing and publishing sector 

since 1987 though its overall disclosure index has been the 

lowest. 

It can therefore be concluded in gen•ral that, there has 

been an upward trend in the growth of voluntary disclosure by 

quoted companies in Kenya since 1987. 



4.2 LIMITATIONS OF THE STUDY 

The project had a number of limitation which should be borne 

in mind when analysing the significance of the project. 

1. The population under study was 41 companies which was too 

small when compared to the number of companies in Kenya, 

including multinational companies although the sample of 32 

companies represent 78Y. of the popul~tion it may b& 

difficult to generalise the results of the study for all 

companies in Kenya. 

2. The companies studied where homgeneous since the study 

excluded financial institutions and insurance companies. In 

a similar manner, it may not be easy to generali$e the 

r•sults for the e~cluded companies. 

3. The selection of the information items depended on judgement 

of the researcher and may result into errors. Hence a large 

number of information items may have been left out. 

4. The time spent on the study was three months which was too 

small for a research of this nature. 

4.3 DIRECTIONS FOR FURTHER RESEARCH 

This study is concerned with the analysis of financial 

disclosure through use of disclosure index. Inorder to complete 

the research into the extent of voluntary in Kenya, the 

researcher recommends a number of studies as possible directions 

of future research. 

1. There is need to analyse the factors that influence the 

e~tent of corporate disclosure including; number of share 
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holders, profit margin, company size and listing status. 

2. It is also important that studies be c rri d out to 

determine the •xtent to which Auditor influ•nce the l•vel 

of reporting. 

3. It is also 5uggested that an opinion 5Urvey be carried out 
I 

to determine an index of disclosure from the information 

users' perspective in order to assess the extent to which 

corporate reports satisfy users needs. 
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APPENDIX 1 

Accounting & Reporting Requirements 

A Directors' Report 

8 Balance Sheet 

1. Share Capital 
2. Reserves 
3. Provisions 
4. Loans and Debentures 
5. Taxation 
6. Liabilities 
7. Contingent Liabilities 
8. Fixed Assets 
9. Intangible Assets 
10. Investments in Subsidiaries 
11. Investments 
12. Current Assets 
13. General 

C Profit and Loss Account 

1. General 
2. Depreciation 
3. D1rectors' Emoluments 
4. Taxation 
5. Provisions and Reserves 
6. Dividends 
7. Exceptional Items 
0. Miscellaneous 
9. Compara tives 

D Consolidated Accounts 

E Auditors' Report 
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A. Directors' report . 

1. State or company's aHalrs 

2. Recommended dividend 

3. Proposed allocation to reserv s 

'1 . Any material change during the financial year in: 

n. The nature of company's business. 

b. In company's subsidiaries. 

c. The classes or business In which the comrany has nn interest 

Except in ec:~ch cAse (a), (b) and (c), Wh(~re 11 rniqht be. 1n tile 

Opinion Of the directors, tlarr ful to the bu tnc S f lht.! Olllf'li lnY 

or of any ol its subsidiaries. 
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Companies Act 
Reference 

s 157 (1) 

s 157 (1) 
, . 157(1) 
s. 157 (2) 



. ) 

1
meelings in .that year and not more than firteen months shall 
elapse between the date of one annual general meeting of a 
company and that of the next. 

9. At least 21 days notice in writing shall be given for a general 
meeting of the company (other than an adjourned meeting). 
10. The minimum number of members for a public company is 
seven with no maximum and for a private company is two. but will1 
a maximum, excluding employees and past employees. of fifty. 
11. A director who is required by the articles of the company to 
hold a specified share qualification shall o t<~in his qLmlification 
within two months after his appointment. 

12. No person shall be capable or being appointed A director of a 
company either if he has not attained the age of twenty one or it he 
has attained the age of seventy unless appointed at a gennral 
meeting of which special notice is given. 
(This section does not apply to a private company which is not a 
subsidiary of a public company). 
13. Special provisions of companies incorporated outside l<enya 
should be complied with where applicable. 

E. Auditors 

Companie-s Act 
Reference 

S. 133 

s. 4 

s. 183 

s. 106, 17 

Ss. 365 • 381 

1. Every company shall at each annual general meeting appoint S. 159 
auditors to hold oflice ti ll the next general meeting. Notwithstanding 
the above a retiring auditor, however appointed. shall be deemed 
to be re-appointed. without any resolution being passed subject 
to certain provisions. 
2. a. A person or firm shall not be qualified lor appointment as S. 161 
auditor of a company unless he or. in the cas o f a rlrm, every 
par1ner in the firm, Is the holder of a practls~ng cortiflcato lssu d 
pursuant to Section 21 of the Accounlants Act. 
b. None of the following persons sh. II be qualified for appointment 
as auditor of a company: 

I. an oHicer or servant of the company: 
II. a person who is a partner of or in the employment of an officer 
or servant of the company: 
Ill. a body corporate. 
Provided thai sub~paragraph (il) shall not apply In the case o f a 
private company. 
c. A person shall also not be qualified for appointment as auditor 
of a company if he Is, by virtue ol (b) above. disqualified lor 
appointment as auditor of any other body corporate which is thai 
company's subsidiary or holding company or would be so 
disqualified It the body corporate were a company. 

3. Special notice Is required for a resolution at an annual general S. 160 
meeting for removal of auditors (28 days notice) . 

'4. Remuneration ot auditors shall be fixed by either: s. 159 (7) 
a. The directors or the registrar whoever appointing, or 
b. the company In general meeting or in 111 manner d termlned 
by the general meeting. 
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A. Books of Account 

Companies Act 
neference 

1. Every company shall cause to be kept proper books of account S. 147 
In the English language with respect to: 
a. all sums of money received and expended by the company and 
the matters in respect of which the receipt and expenditure takes 
place; 
b. all sales and purchases of goods by the company: 
c. the assets and liabilities of the company. 

B. Statutory books and records 

Register of directors and secretaries 
1. Every company shall keep at its registered office a register of its 
directors and secretaries. 
2. The company shall deliver to the registrar for registration a 
return of appointment or change of directors and secretary in the 
prescribed form within fourt en days of the ClrflOintment ol the 
first directors and secretary o f the company or change ol the 
directors and secretary. 
3. The register of directors and secretaries sht!ll be open for 
inspection by members and the general public. 
4. Every company shall in al l trade c. talogues, trade circulars, 
showcards and business letters on or In which the company's 
name appears and which are issued or sent by the company shall, 
subject to exceptions, state certain particulars in respect of every 
director. 

Register of members 
5. Every company shall keep a register of members and inrtcx at 
its registered office or at such place as mny be no tified to the 
Regis trar or Companies and en ter therein the rcquir d particulars. 

Register of charges, mortgages and debentures 
6. Every company shall keep at the registered office of the company 
a copy of every instrument creating any charge requiring registration 
with the registrar and shall keep at such ollice n register of charges 
and enter therein the required panicuiMS. 
Every charge must be registered with the Registrar of Companies 
within 42 days alter Its creation or it Sl'lall c void. 

Minute books 

s. 201 
{1 ) to {3) 

S. 201 
(4) and (5) 

s 201 
(6) to (8) 
S. 202 (1) 

s. 112, 113 

S. 96 to 10 

7. Every company shall cause minutes of all proceedings of S. 1·15 
general meetings and of meetings or ils dir ctors to e ent red In 
books kept lor that purpose. 
8. Minute books of General Meetings shall be kept at the registered S. 146 
office of the company and shall be open to the inspection of any 
member. 

Register of directors' holdings 
9. Every company shall keep at its regis! red office a register of S. 196 
directors' share holdings in or debentures of the company or its 
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~. Profit and loss account 

. General 

Companlt: Ac l 
terence 

1 Pro fir and los accounl 10 give a true and la1r view ol the prol11 S. 149 ( 1) 

r loss of lhe company for the financial year. 

. Depreciation 

.1 Amountcharged to revenuebywayofprovisionlordepreciarion, 6 Sch. 12 (1) (a) 
~newals or diminu l ion in v<t lue of fixed assets . 

. 2 tethod o l depreciat1on used or lhe fac t thai no provision IS 6 Sell 14 (2) 

1ade. where deprectation or replac mcnt ol fixed assets 1S c11h r: 
. not provided for, o r 
. pro idea for by some method other than a deprectation charge 
r provision for renewals . 

. Director's emotum~nts 

Emoluments tor acl ing as director of the company and, 1f 
lpltcable, any subsidianes (whether paid by the company, 
tbsid1aries or any other person) . 

Emoluments fo r managerial services to the company and. tf 

lPitcable. any subsidiaries (whether paid by the company, 
lbStCiiaries or any other person) 

Total of the above 

:~te : Emoluments inc lude expense allowances (so tar as they 

e taxed s income o f the director): contributions to any pension 
heme; est imated money value or other beneftts other I han tn cash. 

1 Di rectors' or past directors' pensions 
Pensions in respect ol acttng as director of rhe company and. if 

•phcable. any subsidiary (whether paid by the company. 
hs1d1aries or any other person) 

Pension in respec t of managenal services 10 the company and, 

appt1cable, any subsidtory (whether paid up by th comrany. 

bstdiaries or any o ther person) 

Total of above 

otes: 1 Pensions, paid to persons ou t of a pension scheme 

·h•cn is adequately maintained by p riodic contnbutions. are not 
be 1ncluded . 

. Pensions include any superannuation allowance, gratuity or 
m1lar payment 

2 Compensation to directors or past directors for 
1ss o f office. 

Compensation for the loss of office of director of the company 

•d. 1f applicable, any subsidiaries (dis t•ngu•shtng between 

nounts paid by the company. subsidiaries or any other person) 

Compensation to r the loss of otlice in connection with the 
:~.nagement of the company and, if applicable, any subsidiaries 
IStJnguish.ng between amounts paid by the company, subsidiaries 
any olher person). 
Total or above 

:>te: If any compensa tton IS required 10 be refunded by the 

7 0 

197 (2) (b) 

197 (2) (a) 

107 (2) (a) 

197 (5) (a) 

197 (1) (a) 

197 (2) 

197 (3) (b) 

197 (5) (a) 

197 (3) (b) 

197 (5) (a) 

197 (1) (b) 

197 (3) (a) 

197 (3) 

197 (4) (b) 

197 (5) (b) 

197 (4) (a) 

197 (5) (b) 
1'l7 (1) (C) 



B. Balance Sheet 

1. Share Capital 

1 
1.1 Summary of authonscd and 1ssu d share capital. 

;1. 1.2 Amount or redeemable pre! renee s11 res and th e rli~st 
date on wn1ch the company has power to redeem these shares. 

-.. 1.3 Any share cap1tal on wh1ch 1nterest has been pa1d out of 
cap1tal dur1ng the financ1al year and th r 1 ~ of 1nterest so f r ns 

- not diSClosed in the prol1t and lo s ccount 

'-~ 1 A The number. descnpt1on and amount I any sh rc:; which any 
person has an option to subscr1be tor. the opuon pnce and penod 
durtng which it IS exerc1sable. 

1.5 For arrears of fixed cumula ttve dividends, the p riod and 
gross amount in arrears lor eac11 class o l shares. 

1.6 The number. description and amount of company's shares 
held beneficially by its subsidiari s of thetr non inees. 

2. Reserves 
2.1 Aggregate amount of r erves. d1stingu1 hmg wher m ten I 
between capnal nnd revenue reserv s 
2.2 Source or ~pplicnllon ol any mHtcnaltncre se or decrease 111 

reserves ol each class tf mat •ri 1 and not shown tn the prollt and 
loss nccount or report annexed llu:reto 
2.3 Capital redemption reserve lund. 
Vl The amount of s11 r pr mium account. 

3. Provisions 
3.1 The followmg, if maten 1. to be shown (other II an for 
d precia tion. rencwuls or dHn1nut1on ir value of assuts) . 
a. Aggrega te amount or prov1S1ons 
b. Source or npplic lion of any material •nero se or decrease. 
c. Any prov1sion 1n xcess of that which ts considered reasonable 
by the directors shnll b treated as a res~::rve . 

4. Loans and Debentures 

Companies Act 
Referenc 

6 Sch. 2 
Sctl. 2 (a) 

6 s h. 2 (b) 

Sell. 11 (2) 

6 Sch. 11 (3) 

6 Sch. 15 (3) 

6 Sch. 4 (1): 6 

6 Sch. 7 

S. 60 (1) 

Sc11. 2 (c) 

6 Sch. 4 ( 1 ) : 6 
6 Sch. 7 
6 Sch. 25 (2) 

4.1 Particulc rs of any redeemed d bentures which 111 company 6 Sch. 2 (d) 
can re-issue. 
4.2 The nomtnal amount and bool value .of the company's 6 Sch. 10 
dt.:bentures held by a nominee of or trustee lor tile company. 
4.3 The number. description and amount of the company's 6 Sci . 15 (3) 
debentures held benelictafly by its su sidi nes or th~.:ir no in es. 

5. Taxation 
5.1 Basis and amount set aside for income tax. 

6. Liabilities 
6.1 Amounts class if ted under headings appropri te to tha 
company's business. 

6 Sch. 11 ( 1 0) 

6.2 D•sclose as .. secured" any liability of the company which Is 6 Sch. 9 
secured, other than by operallon of the law, on any as ets of the 
company. 
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6.3 Net aggregate recommended dividend (after d duction of 
Income Tax). 
6.4 Aggregate amount of bank loans and overdrnlts. 
6.5 Amounts due to the compAny's subsidiaries, including to ns. 
6 .6 Amounts due to group companies, (holding company and 
fellow subsidiary companies) distinguishing betwe n doh ntures 
and other indebtedness. 

1. Contingent Liabilities 

Comp. nles Act 
Ref •renee 

6 ych 8 ( 1) (e) 

6 Sch a (1) (d) 

6 Sci 15 (2) 
6 S .h Hi (1) 

7.1 Particulars, including amounts. of Any chflrge on the assets of > Sch. 11 (4) 
the company to secure the liab1liles of any other per son 

7.2 Nature and amount (where pract1icable) of o ther material 6 S h . 11 (5) 
contingent liabilities. if not providro 

7.3 The aggregate ot estim: ~ L'<1 nm01.1n~ . 1 ~~ ; ~, .. ~ 1: \. 1.'l "'' ~tts ~ ~<'h \ \ ~f) 
for capital expenditure. so lnr as not prov1ded 

i • 

8. Fixed Assets ! 

• 
8.1 The method used to arrive at the amoun t o f hxed assets 
c lassi fied under headings appropriate to the comrmny's business. 
8.2 For each class of asset the aggregate cost orvahration and tho 
accumulated depreciation since the date of acq11isition or 
valuation. 
This requirement does not nppty to: 
a. Assets for which the co.,t of repli'lccment rs wrill n off to 
revenue or to a specially creal d provision (bns1s ()f prov1Jin~J lor 
replacemen t and amount or unus d provisron m1r t h stnt (J) . 

b . Investments for whicl1 ither market valut, or cJircctors' 
valuntion is shown. 
c. Goodwill. patents or trflde m::trks 

9. Intangible Assets 
9.1 Aggreg<'lle written clown value o f goodwill. pat nts and 
trade-marks. 
9.2 Expendi ture not wrlll n off to be shown scpar;ttefy· 
a. Preliminary expenses. 
b. Expenses of issue ol shar s or dehentures 
c. Commission incurred on 1ssue of shares or debentures. 
d. Discount allowed on issue of shares. 
e. Discount allowed on Issue of debentures. 

10. Investments in Subsidiaries 
10.1 Aggregate amount or investment in subsidiaries distinguishing 
shares (basis of valuation to be shown) from indebtedn s~ (whi h 
includes loans).· 

10.2 Where the financial y ar of any o f the subsi iaries does not 
coincide with the company's: 

a. The dates on which the subsidiaries' financial years ended or 
ttle earliest and latest of these dates The latest ciRte is tile last date 
befo re tM company's year end. 

b. The reasons why the company's directors consider that the 
subsidiaries financial years should not end with that of the company. 

72 

6 Sch. 4 (3) 

6 Sch 5 (1) 

6 Sch. (2) 

6 Sch. 5 (2). 5 (4) 

G Sc l1 5 (2) 

Sch. 5 (2) 

6 Sch. 6 (1) (b) 
6 Sch. 6 (2) 

6 Sch. 3 

6 Sch. 15 (~) 

6 Sch. 15 (6) 
6 Sr.h. 22 



10.3 Where group accounts are not submitted: 

a. Reasons why subsidiaries are not dealt w1th. 

b. Net aggregate amounts attnbutable to the hold1ng company of 

profits less losses of such subsidiaries both: 

I. dealt with and 
11. not dealt with 
In the company's accounts for 

I. the respective financial years of the subsidiaries ending with or 

during the financial year of the company and 

II. the previous financial years since acquisition. 

c. Any qualificlation in the subsidianus· auditors' report, and 

information relating thereto included in the nott:lS to the ccounts, 

v, here this qualificat ion and information is matenal from the po1nt 

of view of the members or the holding company. 

d. If (a). (b) or (c) are not available a statement to that effect. 

11. Investments 

11.1 Aggregate amounts of 
a. Trade investments. 

b. Quoted investments (other than trade investments). 

c. Unquoted investments (other than trade investments). 

11.2 Subdivision of those quoted investments which have and 

those which have not been granted a quotation or permi sian to 

deal on a stock exchange of repute. 

11.3 The aggregate market value of quoted Investments (other 

than trade investments) and the stock exchange value if lower. 

11.4 Directors or market valuation of the unquoted investments 

or, if not stated, the cost le s aooregate amounts written off 

(unless held as a current asset) . 

12. Current Assets 

Comp nl • Act 
uluroncu 

6 Sch. 15 (4) 

6 Sch. 8 (1) (a) 

6 Sch. a (3) 

6 Sch. 11 (8) 

6 Sch. 5 (2) (c) 
6 Sch. 5 (3) 

12.1 Amounts classified under headings appropriate to the 6 Sch. 4 (1} 

company's business. 

12.2 State if, in the opinion of the directors, the realisable value of 6 Sch. 11 (7) 

any of the current assets in the ordinary course of business is I ss 

than their balance sheet values. 

12.3 Basis of valuat ion of stock and work-in-progress must be 6 Sch. 14 (6) 

consisten t or any vanations disclosed. 

12.4 Aggregate amounts or loans made under the provisions of 6 Sch. 8 (1) (c) 

S. 56 of the Act. 

12.5 The amounts of loans, including loans madtt and repaid 

during the year made by the company or by a subs1 iary, or by u 

third party on the security or guarantee of the company or of a 

subsidiary, to dtrectors or oHicers of the company (Except loans 

made in the ordinary cour e of business or a loan made to an 

employee of the company or its subsid ary if it does not exceed 

Shs. 40,000). 

s. 198 (1) 
s. 1 !)0 (2) 

Note: It is the duty of the auditors to give the required particulars S. 108 (3) 

If the above is not disclosed. 
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. 
director under circumstances set out in Section 194. such amount 

Companies Act 
Re ference 

Is not to be included. '197 (5) (a) 

3.3 In which years' accounts should the above amounts 
be disclosed? 
a. The amounts to be disclosed for any financial year are:-
1. Sums wh ich are identifiable as being receivable in respect of 
that financial year, regardless of when paid. 

2. Sums paid in that financial year which are not identifyable with 
any particular period 
b. In certain instances the amounts to be disclosed may not be 
determinable until a later period In which case the amounts shall 
be separately disclosed in the first accounts in which it is practicable 

· to do so. 

4. Taxation 

197 (6) 

197 (6) 

197 (6) (a) 
197 (6) (b) 

4.1 Amount or the charge for income tax and any other taxation 6 Sch. 12 (1) (c) 
on profits to date. 
4.2 Basis of computation of taxation. 6 Sch. 14 (3) 

5. Provisions and Reserves 
5 .1 The amounts provided for redemption or: 
a. Share Capi tal 
b. Loans 
5.2 The amounts, If material: 
a. Set aside to, or proposed to be set aside to, or withdrawn from. 
reserves. 

6 Sch. 12 (1) (d) 

6 Sch. 12 (1) (e) 

b. Set aside to provisions (other than provisions for depreciation. 6 Sci . 12 (1) (f) 
renewals and diminution In value of assets) and the amounts 
wlthdrnwn from such provisions If nol applied for the purpose 
thereof. 

6. Dividends 
6.1 Aggregate amount of the dividends paid and proposed and 6 Sch. 12 (1) (h) 
whether or not they are subject to deduction of income tax. 6 Sch. 14 (·1) 

7. Exceptional Items 
7.1 Items that are materially affected by: 
a. transactions or a sort not usually undertaken by the comrany 
o r otherwise by circumstances of an excentlonal or non recurrent 
nature. 
b. any changes in the basis of accounting. 

8. Miscellaneous 
8.1 Interest paid on debentures and fixed loans. 

8.2 Income from investments, distinguishing between trade 
investments and other investments. 

8.3. Auditors' remuneration (including expenses) if not fixed in a 
general meeting. 

9. Comparatives 

6 Sch. 14 (6) 

6 Sch. 12 (1) (b) 

6 Sch. 12 (g) 

6 Sch. 13 

9.1 Comparative figures for the immediate preceeding financial 6 Sch. 14 (5) 
year. 
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6.3 e aggregate recommended dividend (aher deduction of 
1 ome Tax) . 
6.4 Aggregate amount of bank loans and overdrafts. 
6.5 Amounts due to the company's subsidiaries, including loans. 
6.6 Amounts due to group companies (holding company and 
fel low subsidiary companies) distinguishing between debentures 
and ot er indebtedness. 

7. Contingent Liabilities 

Companies Act 
Reference 

6 Sch 8 (1) (e) 

6 Sch 8 (1) (d) 
6 Sch 15 (2) 

6 Sch. 16 (1) 

7.1 Particulars. includrng amounts. of any charge on the assets of 6 Sch. 11 (4) 
the company to secure the hab1lites of any other person. 

11 ature and amount (where practicable) of other material 6 Sch. 11 (5) 

contingent liabilities, 1f not provided 

7.3 The 8Qgfega e Of es\im.~~ed am ' ~ . ' r ; ~ "" : . '! {'('I t'Z\(' ~ ~('h I t l'l 
lor capital expenditure. so far as not prov1ded 

8. Fixed Assets · 
8.1 The method used to arrive at the amount of fixed assets 
classified under headings appropriate to the company's business. 
8.2 For each class of asset the aggregate cost or valuation and the 
accumulated depreciation since the date of acquisition or 
valuation. 
Th1s requirement does not apply to: 
a. Assets for which the cost of replacement •s written off to 
revenue or to a specially created provision (bas1s of providing lor 
replacement and amount of unused provision must be stated). 
b. In estments lor wh ich either market value or directors' 
valuallon is shown. 
c. Goodwill. patents or trade marks 

9. Intangible Assets 
9.1 Aggregate written down value of goodwill. patents and 
trade-marks. 

9.2 Expenditure not written off to be shown separately: 
a. Preliminary expenses. 
b. Expenses of issue of shares or debentures. 
c. Commission incurred on 1ssue of shares or debentures. 
d. Discount allowed on issue of shares. 
e. Discount allowed on Issue of debentures. 

10. Investments in Subsidiaries 
10.1 Aggregate amount of investment in subsidiaries distinguishing 
shares (basis of valuation to be shown) from indebtedness (which 
includes loans). 

10.2 Where the financial year of any of the subsidiaries does not 
co1ncide with the company's: 
a. The dates on which the subsidiaries' financial years ended or 
t e earfiest and latest of these dates. The latest date is the last date 
before the company's year end. 

b. The reasons why the company's directors consider that the 
subsidiaries financial years should not end with that of the company. 

75 

6 Sch. 4 (3) 

6 Sch. 5 (1) 

6 Sch. 5 (2) 

6 Sch. 5 (2) : 5 (d) 

6 Sch 5 (2) 

6 Sch. 5 (2) 

6 Sch. 8 (1) (b) 
6 Sch. 8 (2) 

6 Sch. 3 

6 Sch. 15 (2) 

6 Sch. 15 (6) 
6 Sch. 22 



13. General 

Companlee Act 
R•fe,..nce 

13.1 Balance sheet to give a true and fairview ot the state olaHalrs S. 149 ~ 1) 

ot the company as at the end of its financial year. 

13.2 Basis of conversion of material foreign currency assets or 6 Sch. 1 1 (9) 

liabilities Into East African currencies. 

13.3 Amounts due from group companies (holding company and 6 Sell. 16 ( 1) 

fellow subsidiary companies) distinguishing between debentures 

and other indebtedness. 

13.4 The corresponding amounts at the end of the Immediately 6 Sch. 11 (1 1) 

preceding financial year. 
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holding or subsidiary company, or a subsidiary of the company's 
holding company. 

Register of directors' holdings 

Companies Act 
neterence 

10. E ery comp ny shall keep a register of debenture holders at S no 
its registered ollice or at such lace as may be notlli&d to the 
Aeg1strar of Companies. 

C. Annual returns 

Every company shall, once at least in every cnlender yet r, make a Ss. 125 to 129 
return up lo the fourteenth day Iter the date of 111c annual oene1 al 
meeting and f1le it wllh the Registrar of Companies w1111111 the 
prescribed time limit (A cerll fi d true copy of the bill nee sh ct. 
directors' report and auditors' report must be nnne .d to the 
return of a public company. or a pnv te company wn1ch I as a 
Kenya public company as • shareholder) . 

D. Other statutory requirements 

1. Every company (other than a private company) registered after S. 177 
1st January. 1962 shall have at least two directors. Every company 
registered before 1st January, 1962, and evory pnv te company 
shall have at least one director. 

2. Every company shall have a secret ry. S. 178. 179 
3. The Directors, subject to certain exemptions, shall lay br:fore S. 140 
the Company in general meeting, not later thnn eighteen months 
after incorporation and subsequently once at le st in each 
calendar year, a balance she t nd profit and loss account made 
up to a date not earlier than the date of the meeting by more than 
nine months, or in the case of a camp ny carry1ng on busm ss or 
havrng interest abroad, by more than twelve months. 

4. Every balance sheet of a company, subject to cerlain provisos. S. 155 
shall be signed on behalf of the board by two directors or if there is 
only one director, by that director. 

5. The profit and loss account. and. so far as not incorporated in S. 156 
the balance sheet or profit and loss account, any grour> accounts 
laid before the company in gener I meeting shall be nnexed to 
the balance sheet and the auditors' report shall be attached. 
6. A directors' report shall be attached to every balance sheet laid S. 157 
before a company in general meeting. 
7. A balance sheet, including every document required by law to S. 158 
be annexed thereto, which is to be laid before a company in 
g neral meeting, togeth r with the audllors' report shall be circulated 
not tess than twenty one clear days before the date of them e1ing 
10 every member, every debenture hul, ur and any other person 
who is entitled to receive not1ce of general meetings of the company. 
8. Every company shall in each calender year hold a g neral S. 131 
meeting as its annual general me ting in addition 10 any other 

77 

. .. 



. Consolidated accounts 

I Group accounts, in the form or consolidated accounts shall 
.bject to certain exceptions, comprise a consolidated balance 
1eet and consolidated profit and toss account dealing with the 
ate of affa1rs and profit or loss of the company and all subsidiaries 
be dealt with in group accounts. 

2 Group accounts shall give a true and fai r view of the state of 
'lairs and the profit and loss of the holding company and the 
Jbsidiaries, so far as concerns members of the holdmg company . 

. 3 Group accounts are reqUired where the company has a 
ubs1diary company at the end of 1ts financial year (or penod) and 
; not itself a wholly-o.wned subSidiary of another company 
1corporated in Kenya . 

. 4 A subsidiary may be omitted from the group accounts if the 
ompany's directors are of the opinion that 

. It is impracticable or woul,d be of no real value to members. in 
iew of the insignificant amounts involved, or would involve 
xpense or delay out or proportion to the value to memb rs of the 
ompany: or 

>. rt!sults would be misleading or harmful to the business.of the 
:ompany or any or its subSidiaries; or 
;. business of the company and subSidiaries are so different that 
hey cannot reasonably be treated as a Single undertaking. 

fhe registrar's approval must be obtained for (b) and (c) . 

1.5 Where group accounts are not sutmitlod, the following 
Information is to be given (if informatiOn is unobl mable state this 
tact) : 
a. 1 r subsidiary companies are not co-terminous directors· reasons 
and the dates at which the last preceding accounts were closed. 
b. Reasons why subsidianes are not dealt w1th in group accounts. 
c. Particulars of company's proportion of prolits or toss s. 

d. Qualifications in auditors report on accounts of subs1d1aries. or 
notes on accounts which, if not made. would have b en referr d 
to in such a qualification. if they affect the hOlding company, ;ue 
not covered by 1ts accounts and are material. 

Notes: 
i. The information required under (b), (c) and {d) above may be 
omitted if the reg istrar's permission is obtained. 

li. These particulars must. as tho law stands at present. be shown 
on the nccounts of a wholly owned subsidiary which, itself a 
holding company, does not produce group accounts. 
iii. The informat ion required under (a). (b), (c) and (d) abov may 
be shown in the directors' report . 

1.6 Consolidated accounts are to comply so far as practicable 
With the requirements outlined for companies as if they were the 
accounts of a company except tor the requirements in respect of 
amounts received by dtrectors. loans to directors and otricers, 
sen1or employees' emoluments which will in these cases disclose' 
the holding company position only. 

1.7 A holding company need not submit a prof1t and toss account 
if 11 submits a consolidated profit and loss account 1n accordance 
w1th the requirements outlined, ilnd d1scloses what port1on of the 
consolidated profit (or toss) h s been dealt w1th 1n 11~ accounts. 
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Comp nles Act 
A I renee 

s. 151 (1) 
s. 151 (3) 
s. 151 (3) 

s. 152 (1) 

s 150 (1) 
S. 150 (2) (u) 

s 150 (2) ( ) 

6 Sch. 15 (6) 

6 Sch. 15 ( 4) ( J 
Sch. 15 (4) (b), (c) 

6 Sch. 15 (5) 
6 Sch. 15 (4) (d) 

6 Sch. 15 (4) 

6 Sch. 15 (1) 

S. 163 

s. 151 
s .. 1s2 (3) 
6 Sch. 17 to 10 

s. 149 (5) 

·'· 
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E. Auditors' Report 

MaHers to be expressly stated In the Auditors' report. 

CompAnies Acl 
Reference 

1. Whether they have obtained all the information an e planations 7 Sch. ( 1) 
which to the best of their knowledge and belief were necess ry lor 
the purposes of their audit. 
2. Whether In their opinion, proper books of account have been 7 Sch. (2) 
kept by the company, so far as appears from thetr examination of 
those books, and proper returns ad quale for the purpose of 111 ·•r 
audit have been received from branches not visited by thorn 
3. (I) Whether the company's balance sheet and (unless tl IS 7 Sch. (3) 
framed as consolidated profit and loss account) profit and loss 
account dealt with by the report or in t1 statement annexed ther , I 

are in agreement with the books of accounts and returns. 

(II) Whether, in their opinion and to the best of their information 
and according to the explanations niven to thom. the sai accounts 
give the information required by the Companies Act in lhe 
manner so required and give a true and fair view: 

a. in the case of the balance sheet of the state or the company's 
affairs as at the end of lis financial year: and 
b. in the case of the profit and loss account of the profit or loss lor 
its financial year. 
or. as the case may be, give a true and lair view thereof :;ubject to 
the non-d isclosure o r any matters (to be indicate In tile repon) 
which by virtue of Part Ill of the Sixth Schedule to this Act aro not 
required to be disclosed. 
4. In the case or a holding company submitting nroup accounts 7 Sch. (4) 
whether, In their opinion, the group accounts have been properly 
prepared In accordance with the provisions of this Act so as to 
give a true and fair view of the state ol affairs and profit or loss o f 
the company and Its subsidiaries dealt with thereby, so lar as 
concerns members o f the company. or, as the case may be so os 
to give a true and fair view thereof subject to the non-d1sclosure o r 
any matters (to be Indicated In the repofl) wt1ich by virtu of Part 
Ill of the Sixth Schedule to this Act are not required to be disclos d. 
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APPEND I X 2· ..... 

I<ENYA ACCOU oJTING ST. OAROS. 

DISCLOSURE OF CC UNT ING POL IC IE-

EXTRAORDINARY AND PRIOR PERIOD ITEMS . 

ACCOUNT! G FOR CONTINGENCIES 

ACCOUNT I 6 FOP. POST BALANCE S EET EVENTS 

DEPRECIATION ACCOUNTING 

VALUATION Af\0 PRESENTATION OF INVENTORIES 
IN THE CONTEXT OT HISTORICAL COST S !STEM 

5TATEI'1E H OF CHANGES IN FINA CIAL POSU!T!ON 

_,[COUNTING FOR LEASES 

... CCOUNTI G F EFFECTS OF . NGED IN 

EXCHANGE RATE 

ACCOUNT If\G FOR INCOME TA\ 

CtCCOUNTING FOR SUBSIDIARY COMP NIES 

~CCOUNTING FOR ASSOCIATED COMP .NIES 

ACCOUNT !NG FOR GOOD\IIILL 

ACCOUNT tNG FOR INVESTMENTS 

RELATED PARTY TRAI'· SACT lONS 

REVENUE RECOGNITION . 

ACCOUNTING FOR PROPERT¥ . PLANT 
EQUIPMENT. 

E '1 POSUP.E DRAFT • 

REVALU TlO OF ASSTS 
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.AS 1 983 

.AS 2 19 5 

AS 3 !984 

S4 1~94 

s 5 1985 

AS 0 1 86 

.s 1986 

.AS 8 1987 

AS 9 1989 

If. Sl(t 1.89 

ASll 1989 

.AS 12' 1988 

AS .,. 
1989 - -

.AS 14 1?99 

AS 15 1 90 

AS 16 1'990 

. 517 199~) 
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APPENDIX 3 

L IST OF SAMPLE OF COMPANIES 

1. Brook Bond Liebeg Kenya Ltd 

2 . George William Kenya Ltd. 

3 . Kapchorua Tea Company Ltd. 

4 . Limuru Tea Company Ltd. 

5 . 01 Pejeta Ranching Ltd. 

6 . Sasim Tea and Coffee Ltd. 

7 . Cor & General Kenya Ltd. 

8. C.M.C. Holding Ltd. 

9 . East Africa Road Services Ltd. 

10 E~press Kenya Ltd. 

11 Marshall E.A . Ltd. 

12 Consolidated Holdings Ltd. 

13 E.s. Packaging Ltd 

14 Natim Printers and Publishers 

15 Carbacid, Investement Ltd. 

16 Coast Africa Cables Ltd . 

17 East Africa O~ygen 

18 Kenya Oil Company 

19 African Tours & Hotel Ltd. 

20 K•nya Br•werise 

21 Kenya Hotels Ltd 

22 Kenya National Mills 

23 Kenya Orchaids Ltd 

24 Bamburi Portland Cement Company Ltd. 
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25 E.A Portland Cement Company Ltd. 

26 Tim Sales 

27 B.A. T. Kenya Ltd 

28 E. A Bag and Cordage Ltd 

29 Dunlop Kenya Ltd 

30 A.Bauman & Company Ltd 

31 Hutchings Bier Ltd 

32 Pearl Dry Cleaners. 
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APPENDIX 4 

VOLUNTARY CORPORATE DISCLOSURE BY QUOTED COMPANIES IN KENYA 

SUMMARY OF INFORMATION DISCKLOSED (RAW DATA) 
1. PLANTATIONS 

1. Expvcten Future Economic Prospect~ 

2. Statistics of selling prices for th• last three years 

3. Projection of future prices 

4. Competitive position of product in Foreign market 

s. Foreign currency earned and spent 

6. Information on trade agreements 

7. Research and development actitivities for three years 

e. E~penditure on employee w lfare 

9. Involvement on community actitivities 

10. Information and amount spent on technology transfer 

11. Experience of Board of Directors 

12. Five year statistics of production 

13. Five year statistics on raw material purchased 

14. Capacity of production 

15. Loans received or given together with repayment terms and 

interest rates 

16. Future capital expenditur 

17. Five year comparative statistics on 

a) Production capacity 

b) Sales volume 

d) Profit 

e) Fixed assets 

f) Investments and long term debts 
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g) Current assets 

h) Reserves and earnings 

18~ Breakdown of Revenue according to branches and subsidiaries 

19. Breakdown of cost of production into wages and other cost of 

production. 

20. Estimated production for the ne~t 9 months 

2. MANUFACTURING SECTOR 

1. Names of subsidiaries and associate companies and percentage 

of shares owned 

2. A summary of key factors and in1ormation on 

a) Gross turnover 

b) Value added ta~ 

c) Dividend cover 

d) Dividend per share 

e) Earnings per share 

f) Capital expenditure 

g) Contribution on Government revenue 

3. Information on sales in terms of performance 

4. Effort in cost reduction 

5. Competition position on Foreign Market 

6. E~penditure on technology transfer 

7. Quality control measures 

8. Participation on social responsibility 

9. Kiswahili version of chairman and directors reports 

10. Review of performance of each subsidiary 

11. Amount of foreign e~change received 
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12. Competitive position in home market and market share 

13. Contribution to human resource development 

14. Contribution to research and dev lopm•nt 

15. Factors affecting raw materi~l sources 

16. Expenditure on for•ign exchange on raw m terial 

17. Employee safety measures 

18. Employee morale and total quality control 

19. Employee welfare activities 

20. Pariticipation and expenditure on: 

a) Donation to Harambee 

b) Publicity and Public Relations 

c) Exhibitions 

21. Current and ne~t years capital committments 

22. Five years statistics on: 

a) Turnover 

b) Value Added Tax 

c) Net turnover 

d) Profit before taxation 

e) Profit to shareholders 

f) Dividend declared 

g) Fixed assets 

h) Stocks 

i) Current assets 

j) Liabilities 

k) Ordinary &hares held 

1) Minority interest 

m) Return on shareholders fund 
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n) Shares on issue 

o) No. of shareholders 

p) Earnings p&r share 

q) Dividend per shar• 

Capital expenditure 

Contribution of government revenue 

Foreign exchange earned 

Foreign exchange spent 

23. Names of audit committee members 

24. Advocates of the company 

25. Five year graphical (statistics) representation of: 

a) Turnover 

b) Contribution to government revenue 

c) Shareholder's fund 

d) Profit attributabl• to shareholders fund 

e) Return on shareholders fund 

f) Earnings per share 

g) Dividend per share 

h) Inflationary effect 

i) Breakdown of value added (selling price) 

. 3. CONTRUCTION AND MATERIALS SECTOR 

1. Discussion of Business climate 

2. Performance of sales 

3. Operational costs 

4. Information on sources and quality of raw materials 

5. Projections of future investment prospects 
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6. Discussion of pricing trends and eff ct~ 

7. Evaluation of marketing c mpaign 

8. Evaluation of sales products 

9. Breakdown of capital e~penditure 

10. Fi~ed assets valuations for the last three yRar 

11. Names of associated compani s and th•ir principal 

activi ti s . 
12. Amounts loan d to groups and the term• of r•payments and 

interest rat s. 

13. Amounts advanced for employee shareholding scheme 

14. Fiv y ar statistics on:-

a- Operating profit 

b-Share of profit in associated comp ni s 

c-Ta>eation 

d-Minority interests 

e-Ordinary divid nt 

f-R tained profit 

g-Fi>eed ass t 

h-Shar c pital 

i-Reserves 

j-Financial 1 ase 

k-Loan receivable 

1-Curr nt asset 

m-Ratios in t rms of 

o-profit and minority interests to 

(a)Turnover 

(b)Capital employ@d 
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4. HOTELS SECTOR 

1. Discussion of the role of Hotel industry to th• 
Kenyan Economy. 

2. Information on effort of management in the reduction of 
losses 

3. Marketing activities and market share of Hot•l• 
in Kenya 

4. Competitive position of branches (on regional basis) 

5. Information on human resources development 

6. Policy on staff recruitment 

7. Bad debts and provision of bad debts 

8. List of branches and their perform•nce 

9. Global factors that affect performance and 

management efforts 

-Insurance 

-Licence and subscriptions 

-Advertising 

-Shows, competitions and safari rally 

-Legal and professional fees 

-Computer equipment rentals 

-Repairs and maintenance 

-Doubtful debts 

-Directors travelling expenses 

-Leave expenses 

-Donations 

-Training levy and cour&es 

-Work permits 

-Security charges 

-Research •nd d•velopment 
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5. PRINTING, PUBLISHING AND PAPER SECTOR 

1. Discussion of performance for the last four years and 
projections for next year. 

2 Prices of raw materials. 

3. Cost of production. 

4. Information on technology trans~er and improvement 

5. Discussion on safety measures and numb~r of accidents 

6. Expenditure on research and development and 

discussion on the various ctivities undertaken 

7. Future prospects for the company 

8. Ten year statistical information on:-

-Net book values per shares 

-Working capital 

-Net earnings 

-Dividends per common shares 

-Kiswahili version of chairman and 

directors report 

-Breakdown of capital commitments into:-

(a)Authorised 

(b)Unauthorised 

(c)Contracted 

(d)Uncontracted 

9. Quality control measures 

10. Quality competitiveness of the product 

6. ENERGY, GAS AND ALLIED SECTOR 
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1. Information on raw material price• 

2. Information on factors affecting performance 

3. Discussion on marketing performance in terms of:

(a) Sales promotion 

(b) Distribution channels 

(c) Education seminars 

(d) Negotiations and consultations with governm•nt 

7. MOTOR & TRANSPORT SECTOR 

1. External factors on p rformance 

2. Effects of donor community e.g. Paris Club on company 

performance 

3. Cost reduction measures undertaken 

4. Forecasts of n xt years' profits 

5. Expenditure on research and dev lopment 

6. Breakdown of product performance by subsidiarie 

branches and exports. 

7. Breakdown of profits by:

-Parent 

-Management 

-Products 

-Country 

B. Provision for bad and doubtful debts 

9. Five year statistical review on:

-Fixed assets 

-Interest on As•ociated companies 

-share capital 

-Share premium 
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-Reserves 

-Share holders fund 

-Net current assets 

(a )Stocks 

(b)Debtor~ 

( c )Creditors 

(d)Proposed dividends 

(e)Bank overdraft 

-Number of shares 

-Group net assets per shares 

-Net assets in Kenya per share 

-Turnover 

-Profit 

-Profit after ta~ation 

-Extraordinary items 

-Minority intere~t 

-Dividends 

-Profits retained 

-Group profit to shareholder5 

-Group earnings per shares 

10. Disclosur• on information on expenditure on the following:

-Sales 

-Cost of sales 

-Trading income 

-Ren ta 1 income 

-Sundry income 

-Salaries, wages and NSSF 

91 



-Printing and Stationery 

-Travel and ent•rtainm•nt 

-Demonstration 

-General expenfi& in this regard 

11. Capital expenditure in terms of Authorised, Contracted and 

Uncontrolled capital 

12. Management efforts in cost reduction 

B. TRADING SECTOR 

1. Comparative performance statistics of production 

for the last three years 

2. Discussion of pricing policy by government 

3. Projections or forecasts of demand 

4. Information on the status of government shares in the 

companies. 

5. Company activities or measures taken to reduce 

pollution 

6. Comparative information on taxation and effect on 

comapny profit 

7. Breakdown of sales in the local and foreign markets 

8. Discussion of factors that affect performance 

9. Information on employee morale 

10. Expenditure on plant and equipment 

11. Breakdown of capital commitment into authorised, 

unauthorized, contracted and uncontracted. 

1~. Information on sources, currency terms and interest 

rates on loans 
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13. Debtors in foreign currency 

14. Brea~down of debtors intoa

-Trade debtors 

-E~port compensation 

-Associate companies 

-Others 

15. Five year statistics onJ

-Ordinary capital 

-Reserves 

-Deferred ta~ 

-Debentures and loans 

-Fixed assets 

-Interest on subsidiaries 

-Investments 

-Profit before tax 

-Ordinary dividend 

-Dividend per share 

-Earnings per share 

-Graphical representation of five year statistics 

16. Statistics on the following sine• 1954l

-Sales in local markets and exports 

-Local demand for cement 

-International demand for cem•nt 
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